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HIGHLIGHTS

(Rs. in crores)

Financial Highlights 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 2001-02 2000-01

Loan Disbursements 780 655 632 474 360 300 218 202 189 184

Net Interest Income 115 85 74 52 36 28 21 20 19 15

Fees & Other Income 12 7 6 6 6 5 6 5 5 5

Operating Cost 25 21 18 14 12 9 9 9 9 8

Operating Profit 103 72 63 44 30 23 19 18 15 12

Provisions & Write Offs (net) 8 3 4 7 4 3 4 5 6 5

Profit Before Tax 94 70 59 37 26 20 15 13 9 7

Profit After Tax 69 50 42 30 22 17 13 11 8 6

Stockholders’ Equity 265 221 190 164 87 73 63 59 53 48

Borrowed Funds 2323 2245 1773 1305 1080 806 572 555 487 450

Loan Assets 2454 2091 1774 1379 1070 818 584 556 480 452

Key Financial Ratios

Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 16.55 16.21 18.15 16.31 14.24 15.71 19.26 18.26 17.65 11.47

Loans to Total Assets (%) 95 85 90 94 92 93 92 90 87 89

Gross NPA to Loan Assets  (%) 1.11 0.94 1.11 1.36 1.48 1.95 1.68 1.87 3.53 5.00

Net NPA to Loans (%) 0 0 0 0 0.23 0.66 0.30 0.81 2.43 3.90

Net Interest Margin to

Average Assets (%) 4.57 3.85 4.31 3.96 3.48 3.69 3.34 3.39 3.53 2.93

Cost to Income Ratio (%) 20 22 22 24 28 29 32 34 37 39

PAT to Average Assets (%) 2.73 2.27 2.47 2.25 2.12 2.20 2.12 1.76 1.54 1.22

Return on Average Networth (%) 28 24 24 24 27 24 22 18 16 13

Measuring Shareholders’ Wealth

Earning Per Share (Rs.) 19.89 14.51 12.22 9.40 7.36 6.31 5.03 3.84 3.02 2.28

Dividend Rate (%) 65 48 40 30 25 21 18 15 12 8

Dividend Payout Ratio (%) 38 39 38 41 35 38 40 44 40 39

Book Value Per Share as at
March 31 (Rs.) 76.21 63.74 54.91 47.42 32.79 27.72 23.91 22.34 20.18 18.40

Market Price Per Share as at
March 31 (Rs.) 217.75 93.70 154.35 137.35 93.30 45.05 29.70 15.90 17.25 8.75

Price to Value Ratio (times) 2.86 1.47 2.81 2.90 2.85 1.63 1.24 0.71 0.85 0.48

Price to Earning Ratio (times) 11 6 13 15 11 7 6 4 6 4

Market Capitalisation (in Crores) 756 325 535 476 247 119 79 42 46 23
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS,
Your directors are pleased to present the Twenty Fourth
Annual Report of your Company with the audited accounts
for the year ended March 31, 2010.

FINANCIAL RESULTS (Rs. in Crores)
For the For the

year ended year ended
March 31, March 31,

2010  2009
Profit Before Tax 94.42 69.58
Provision for Tax
(Net of deferred tax and FBT) 25.46 19.30
Profit After Tax 68.96 50.28
Add:
Balance brought forward
from last year 27.64 13.92
Amount Available for
Appropriation 96.60 64.20
Appropriations:
Special Reserve 17.50 12.00
General Reserve 6.90 5.10
Proposed Dividend 22.57 16.63
Additional Tax on
Proposed Dividend 3.75 2.83
Balance Carried to
Balance Sheet 45.88 27.64

96.60 64.20

Dividend
Your directors recommend payment of dividend of Rs. 6.50
per share for the year ended March 31, 2010 as against a
dividend of Rs. 4.80 per share for the previous year. The
dividend payout ratio for the year, inclusive of additional tax
on dividend will be 38%.
Disbursements
Loan disbursements during the year were Rs. 780.33 crores
as against Rs. 655.52 crores in the previous year. GRUH
continued to focus mainly on the retail segment and
disbursed Rs. 701.62 crores to 13,870 families. Cumulative
disbursements as at March 31, 2010 were Rs. 4,645.18
crores.
Golden Jubilee Rural Housing Finance Scheme
GRUH disbursed Rs. 257.84 crores in respect of 6,383
dwelling units during the year under the Golden Jubilee

Rural Housing Finance Scheme of the Government of India.
Cumulative disbursements under the scheme were
Rs. 1,578.12 crores in respect of 60,841 dwelling units.
Rural Housing Fund (RHF)
The National Urban Housing and Habitat Policy 2007, released
by the Government of India recommends a multi-pronged
strategy for achieving the national goal of ‘Affordable Housing
to All’. The rural housing segment, in particular remains
underserved, constituting only about 10% of the housing
finance market. Keeping this in view, the National Housing
Bank (NHB) formulated a scheme called the Rural Housing
Fund – 2008 (RHF). The scheme is aimed towards rural
housing undertaken by families falling under the weaker
section category as defined in the RBI guidelines on lending
to the priority sector. During the year, GRUH has claimed
Rs. 166.63 crores covering 5,805 families under this scheme.
Cumulative disbursements under this scheme were
Rs. 304.54 crores to 9,894 families.
Loan Assets
As at March 31, 2010, the loan assets increased to
Rs. 2,453.70 crores with a growth of 17%. Loan assets in
respect of retail segment also grew by 18% and stood at
Rs.2,377.62 crores.
Non-Performing Assets (NPAs)
As per the prudential norms of NHB, GRUH’s NPAs stood at
Rs. 27.14 crores as at March 31, 2010 constituting 1.11%
of the total outstanding loans of Rs. 2,453.70 crores. The
NPAs at the end of the previous year were Rs. 19.68 crores,
constituting 0.94% of the total outstanding loans of
Rs. 2,091.43 crores.
GRUH is required to carry a provision of Rs. 5.75 crores
towards NPAs and standard assets of non-housing loans as
at March 31, 2010 as per the norms of NHB. However, as a
measure of caution, GRUH carries a provision of Rs. 27.92
crores. Net NPAs of GRUH was “NIL” on the outstanding
loans of Rs. 2,453.70 crores as at March 31, 2010.
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Commercial Paper
GRUH raised Rs. 905 crores through issuance of commercial
paper during the year. GRUH’s commercial paper is rated
“P1+” by CRISIL Limited (CRISIL), indicating high safety as
regards repayment.  This rating carries a stable outlook. As
at March 31, 2010, there were no outstanding commercial
papers.
Deposits
Despite strong competition from banks and mutual funds,
growth in deposits continued during the year. GRUH mobilised
deposits of Rs. 109 crores and experienced a renewal ratio
of 49% during the year. The outstanding balance of deposits
as at March 31, 2010 was Rs. 279.30 crores. The rating
assigned to GRUH’s deposit programme has been maintained
by the two rating agencies viz. ICRA and CRISIL. GRUH’s
deposits are rated “MAA+” and “FAA+” by ICRA and CRISIL
respectively and both the ratings indicate high safety as
regards timely repayment of principal and interest. These
ratings carry a stable outlook.
Unclaimed Deposits
As at March 31, 2010, public deposits amounting to
Rs. 3.96 crores had not been claimed by 1,063 depositors.
Depositors were intimated regarding the maturity of deposits
with a request to either renew or claim their deposits and
subsequent reminders have been sent.
As per the provisions of Section 205C of the Companies
Act, 1956, deposits remaining unclaimed and unpaid for a
period of seven years from the date they became due for
payment are required to be credited to Investor Education
and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Government
of India. In terms of Section 205C of the Companies Act,
1956, no claim would lie against the Company or the said
fund after the said transfer. Accordingly, an amount of
Rs. 1.96 lacs was transferred to the IEPF during the year.
Unclaimed Dividends
As at March 31, 2010, dividend amounting to Rs. 40.57 lacs
has not been claimed by shareholders. GRUH has been
intimating the shareholders to lodge their claim for dividend
from time to time.

During the year, GRUH has written off Rs. 2.71 crores in
respect of individual loans where the recovery was difficult
in the near future. However, GRUH continued the recovery
efforts in respect of written off loans and could effect
recoveries of Rs. 0.74 crores in respect of these loans during
the year. GRUH also took possession of properties of the
defaulting borrowers under the SARFAESI Act and has sold
few of such acquired properties.
NHB Refinance
GRUH received refinance sanction of Rs. 450 crores from
NHB during the year. GRUH availed refinance aggregating to
Rs. 238.80 crores including Rs. 88.80 crores under RHF. The
refinance outstanding as at March 31, 2010 was
Rs. 968.83 crores.
Bank Term Loans
GRUH received sanctions from banks amounting to Rs. 950
crores of which GRUH availed loans aggregating to Rs. 700
crores. The outstanding bank term loans as at March 31,
2010 were Rs. 900 crores.
Subordinated Debt
GRUH did not issue any subordinated debt during the year.
As at March 31, 2010, GRUH’s outstanding subordinated
debt stood at Rs. 40 crores. The debt is subordinated to
present and future senior indebtedness of the company
and has been assigned rating of “LAA+” by ICRA Limited
(ICRA), indicating high safety with regard to timely payment
of interest and principal.  This rating carries a stable outlook.
Based on the balance term to maturity, as at March 31,
2010, Rs. 16 crores of the book value of subordinated debt
is considered as Tier – II capital under the guidelines issued
by NHB for the purpose of computation of CAR.
Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs)
During the year, GRUH raised NCDs of Rs. 135 crores on
private placement basis. The NCDs are rated “LAA+” by
ICRA, indicating high safety with regard to timely payment
of interest and principal. This rating carries a stable outlook.
The outstanding NCDs as at March 31, 2010 were
Rs. 135 crores.

Loan Assets Profile
(As on March 31, 2010)
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GRUH’s Capital Adequacy Ratio stood at 16.55% as against
the minimum requirement of 12%. Tier – I Capital was
15.57% against the minimum requirement of 6%.
Human Resource Development
At GRUH, human resource development is considered vital
for effective implementation of business plans. Constant
endeavours are being made to offer professional growth
opportunities and recognitions, apart from imparting training
to employees. During the current year, besides the in-house
induction training programmes in lending operations,
recoveries and accounts, employees were also nominated
to training programmes conducted by NHB and other
institutions.
GRUH’s staff strength as at March 31, 2010 was 372.
Employees Stock Option Scheme
The stock options granted to directors and eligible employees
operate under two schemes, namely ESOS-2005 and ESOS-
2007. The disclosures as required under Clause 12.1 of the
SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, as amended, have been
made in the annex to this report.
Particulars regarding Conservation of Energy,
Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Expenditure
GRUH does not have any foreign exchange earnings and
expenditure. Particulars relating to conservation of energy
and technology absorption stipulated in the Companies
(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of
Directors) Rules, 1988 are not applicable to GRUH.
Delisting of Equity Shares
Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009, GRUH has
completed the process of voluntary delisting of equity shares
with the Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Ltd. The equity shares
of GRUH have been voluntarily delisted from the Ahmedabad
Stock Exchange Ltd. with effect from November 25, 2009,
as intimated vide their letter No. ASEL/2009/977 dated
November 24, 2009.

As per the provisions of Section 205C of the Companies
Act, 1956, dividends remaining unclaimed for a period of
seven years from the date of transfer to the unpaid dividend
account are required to be credited to the IEPF. Accordingly,
unclaimed dividend amount of Rs. 2.96 lacs in respect of
the financial year 2001-2002 was transferred to IEPF during
the year. Unclaimed dividend amounting to Rs. 3.43 lacs in
respect of the financial year 2002-2003 is due for transfer
to IEPF in August 2010. In terms of Section 205C of the
Companies Act, 1956, no claim would lie against the Company
or the said fund after the said transfer.
Investments
GRUH continues to maintain its Statutory Liquid Ratio (SLR) as
stipulated by NHB. Accordingly, GRUH carried investments in
approved securities aggregating to Rs. 34.71 crores as at March
31, 2010 to meet the requirement of the SLR. GRUH has
classified its investments as long-term and valued them at cost.
Adequate provision, towards loss, if any, to be experienced on
redemption of investments on maturity has been made.
Regulatory Guidelines
GRUH complied with the guidelines issued by NHB regarding
accounting standards, prudential norms for asset
classification, income recognition, provisioning, capital
adequacy, concentration of credit, credit rating, ‘Know Your
Customer’ - (KYC), Fair Practices Code and real estate &
capital market exposures. The details of compliances are
outlined in the Management Discussion and Analysis report.
The National Housing Bank Act, 1987, empowers NHB to
levy a penalty on Housing Finance Companies for
contravention of the Act or any of its provisions. NHB has
not levied any penalty on GRUH during the year.
GRUH has formulated a risk management framework, which
lays the procedure for risk assessment and mitigation. The
Risk Management Committee (RMC) comprises of the
Managing Director as the Chairman and the members include
senior managers holding key positions in the Company. The
RMC apprises the Audit Committee of the key risks associated
with the business of the Company and the measures to
mitigate them.
The task of overseeing the implementation of the Asset
Liability Management (ALM) has been entrusted to the Audit
Committee which oversees and reviews the ALM position
vis-à-vis risk management.

Resource Profile
(As on March 31, 2010)
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Particulars of Employees
GRUH had 2 employees as at March 31, 2010 employed
throughout the year who were in receipt of remuneration
of Rs. 24 lacs or more per annum.
In accordance with the provisions of Section 217(2A) of
the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, as amended, the
name and other particulars of such employees are set out
in the annex to the Directors’ Report. However, as per the
provisions of Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the Companies Act,
1956, the Directors’ Report is being sent to all shareholders
of the Company excluding the annex. Any shareholder
interested in obtaining a copy of the said annex may write
to the company secretary at the registered office of the
Company.
Directors
Mr. S.G. Mankad, IAS (retd), was appointed as an Additional
Director on the Board with effect from January 14, 2010.
Pursuant to the provisions of Article 121 of the Articles of
Association of the Company read with Section 260 of the
Companies Act, 1956, Mr. S.G. Mankad holds office upto
the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. GRUH has
received a notice in writing from a member under Section
257 of the Companies Act, 1956, signifying their intention
to propose the appointment of Mr. S.G. Mankad as Director
of the Company whose period of office as Director shall be
subject to determination by the retirement of Directors by
rotation. Your directors commend his appointment.
In accordance with Articles 134 and 135 of the Articles of
Association of the Company and the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956, Mr. Keki M. Mistry and Ms. Renu S.
Karnad, directors of the Company, retire by rotation at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) and are eligible
for re-appointment. Your directors commend their
re-appointment.
Mr. Kamlesh Shah was appointed as an Additional Director,
designated as Executive Director on the Board with effect
from April 16, 2010. Pursuant to the provisions of Article
121 of the Articles of Association of the Company read with
Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956, Mr. Kamlesh Shah
holds office upto the date of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. Mr. Kamlesh Shah, a Chartered Accountant has
been with GRUH for 19 years and is presently employed as
General Manager (Corporate Office). Your directors commend
his appointment.
Subject to the approval of members in the General Meeting,
the Board of Directors vide circular resolution dated March
19, 2010 effected on March 29, 2010 re-appointed
Mr. Sudhin Choksey as Managing Director effective April 1,
2010, for a period of 5 years as per the terms specified in
the draft agreement to be placed before the ensuing AGM.
Necessary resolutions for the appointment / re-appointment
of the aforesaid directors have been included in the notice
convening the AGM.
None of the directors of the Company are disqualified from
being appointed as directors as specified in Section 274 of
the Companies Act, 1956.

Auditors
M/s. Sorab S. Engineer & Co., Chartered Accountants,
statutory auditors of the Company having registration number
110417W retire at the ensuing AGM and are eligible for
re-appointment.
The Company has received a certificate from the statutory
auditors to the effect that their re-appointment, if made,
would be within the limits prescribed under Section 224(1B)
of the Companies Act, 1956. The statutory auditors have
also confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by
the “Peer Review Board” of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.
Directors’ Responsibility Statement
In accordance with the provisions of Section 217(2AA) of
the Companies Act, 1956 and based on the information
provided by the management, your directors state that:
i. In the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable

accounting standards have been followed;
ii. Accounting policies selected were applied consistently.

Reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates
were made so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2010
and of the profit of the Company for the year ended
on that date;

iii. Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities;

iv. The annual accounts of the Company have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report
In accordance with clause 49 of the listing agreements, the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a part of
this report.
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Annex to the Directors’ Report
Disclosure pursuant to Clause 12 of SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999
Details of stock options granted, vested, exercised and lapsed during the year under review are as under :
Scheme(s) Exercise Options Options Options Options Total Options

Price (Rs.) Granted Vested  Exercised & Lapsed in force as on
Shares Allotted* March 31, 2010#

ESOS – 2005**   67.00 Nil Nil  3,898  5,910 —-
ESOS – 2007 164.65 Nil 2,11,505 69,292 57,800 6,12,908

* One(1) share would arise on exercise of one (1) stock option.
** Pursuant to the exercise and allotment of 3,898 options during the year, the Scheme comes to an end as there are no further options in force.
# Total Options in force is a total of options vested and not yet exercised and options not yet vested.
Other details are as under :
Pricing formula for the Scheme(s) :

Money realised by exercise of options :

Details of options granted to:  (i) Directors & Senior managerial
(ii) Any other employee who receives a grant in any one year
of option amounting to 5% or more of option granted during
that year  (iii) identified employees who were granted option,
during any one year, equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued
capital of the Company at the time of grant :
Variation of terms of options :
Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) pursuant to issue of shares
on exercise of option calculated in accordance with
Accounting Standard (AS) – 20 :
Disclosure of difference between the employee
compensation cost using intrinsic value of stock options
instead of fair value of the options and the impact of
difference on profits and on EPS of the Company :

Weighted-average exercise prices and weighted-average fair
values of options :
A description of the method and significant assumptions
used during the year to estimate the fair values of options,
at the time of grant including the following weighted-
average information:(a) risk-free interest rate, (b) expected
life,  (c) expected volatility of share price (d) dividend yield
rate (e) the price of underlying share in the market at the
time of option grant :

Since, there was no grant during the year, hence not
applicable.
The Company received Rs. 1.17 crores on account of stock
options exercised and allotted during the year.
Since, there was no grant during the year, hence not
applicable.

Nil
Rs. 19.85

Since the options were granted at the market price, the
intrinsic value of the option is nil. Consequently the
accounting value of the option (compensation cost) was
also nil. However, if fair value of the options according to
Black-Scholes–Mertons Option Pricing Model was to be used
for calculating the accounting value of the option, the
compensation cost would have been Rs. 34.12 lacs, the
profit after tax would have been lesser by Rs. 34.12 lacs
and basic and diluted EPS would have been Rs. 19.79 &
Rs.19.75 respectively.
Since, there was no grant during the year, hence not
applicable.
Since, there was no grant during the year, hence not
applicable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The model Real Estate (Regulation of Development) Bill
mooted by the Ministry of Housing, when legislated, will go
a long way in protecting customers and will bring transparency
and uniformity in ensuring quality of residential units.
With a view to assess regulatory and supervisory issues with
particular focus on the stability of housing finance sector
and to examine suitable measures to address the same, the
National Housing Bank (NHB) set up a Working Group. This
Working Group, consisting of CEO’s of leading housing finance
companies and senior officers of NHB, examined and
reviewed the existing risk management policies, systems
and procedures and suggested suitable measures on various
issues and gaps identified.
Recently, CRISIL published a compendium on housing finance
sector which provides interesting outlook on trends and
factors that could impact the HFCs. According to this report,
HFCs will maintain a robust performance supported by strong
and stable asset quality, steady earnings and healthy
capitalization.
According to CRISIL, HFC’s disbursement will grow between
15%-20% in the financial year 2009-10 and by
20%-22% in 2010-11 despite intensifying competition from
the banks. The growth in HFC’s outstanding loan assets has
been higher than the mortgage portfolio of banks. For the
financial year 2008-09, outstanding loan assets of banks grew
by 4% whereas HFC’s outstanding loan assets increased
by 19%.
According to CRISIL, even HFC’s asset quality is significantly
better than that of the other asset classes of the overall
banking system. For the financial year 2008-09, Gross Non
Performing Assets (GNPA) of banks were at a level of 2.3%
as against HFC’s GNPA of less than 1%. However, CRISIL
believes that asset quality of HFCs will be susceptible to risk
relating to aggressive pricing and increased exposure to
relatively risky builder segment.

Industry Overview
Following the shock of the liquidity crunch in October 2008,
the country experienced decline in the credit off-take and
GDP. The various measures taken thereafter by the policy
makers resulted in significant improvement in liquidity. The
country witnessed ample liquidity in the money market and
interest rates declined. The various fiscal stimulus packages
introduced by the government also helped major sectors
and improved the demand.
The credit off-take, however, did not experience similar
buoyancy and credit growth in the economy remained at a
relatively low level for most part of the year.  Inflation, which
was at the level of 0.27% at the end of the last fiscal, rose
sharply during financial year 2009-10. The increase in inflation
has been largely on account of supply factors.
Going forward, the challenges of an increase in cost of funds
as a result of possible policy measures of RBI to contain
inflation are very high. Secondly, the firm intention of RBI
to introduce a much more transparent concept of “base
rate” in place of “Prime Lending Rate (PLR)” can also adversely
affect the cost of funds of housing finance companies since
most of the housing finance companies borrow funds at a
rate below the PLR.
The housing sector has been witnessing different and newer
challenges year after year with most of the factors that are
external to the industry. These challenges are proving to
be of interest in driving and shaping the industry’s growth.
The initiatives taken by the Government of India like interest
subvention scheme, announcement of Rajiv Awas Yojana
(RAY) to make cities slum free, formation of Sub-committee
under the Ministry of Housing & Urban Poverty Alleviation
for development of framework for housing micro-finance,
introduction of electronic registry for land and property under
the SARFAESI Act and widening of RESIDEX to cover 15
cities of the country will certainly help the real estate sector.
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Market Scenario
The real estate sector which had experienced a slow down
during the second half of the previous financial year witnessed
a gradual and steady rise in the demand. The real estate
sector recovered due to a correction in property prices and
‘teaser rates’ on home loans offered by PSU Banks during
the year under review.
The lead taken by the PSU Banks in offering home loans at
a rate of 8% compelled few of the leading housing finance
players to review their pricing policies and also offer low
interest rates on home loans. But most of other housing
finance companies took a longer time in re-pricing their home
loan rates on account of the time lag in lowering their cost
of funds.
The pressure on the pricing front certainly would have its
adverse impact on the spreads of housing finance companies
(HFCs). It is possible that recoveries also would have
deteriorated considering the fact that the banking industry
has experienced higher level of non-performing assets during
the year under review.
However, the sentiments have improved and optimism
prevails in all sectors of the economy which will have
favourable effect on the real estate and demand for dwelling
units. This augurs well for growth of HFCs.
Loan Products
GRUH’s major focus has been to provide home loans to
individuals and families for purchase, construction and
extension. GRUH also provides loans for repair and renovation
of houses and home loans to families in the self-employed
category where formal income proofs are not easily available
and the repayment capacity of such families are appraised
based on their cash flows. Apart from extending home loans,
GRUH offers loans for purchase and construction of non-
residential properties (NRP).
Home loan products are being offered at variable and fixed
rates giving customers an option to decide on the type of
interest rate risk. Customers are also offered option to select

the mode of calculation of interest on loans, since GRUH
offers loans on annual, monthly and daily rest basis.
With a view to enable a uniform processing of credit risk
assessment, GRUH has adopted a credit score methodology.
The pricing of each loan is linked to the credit score. This
methodology enables GRUH to offer finer interest rates to
deserving families, where credit risk is low and charge a
higher rate of interest where credit risk is high.
Marketing Efforts
To ensure a deeper geographic reach, GRUH has been
sourcing retail business through third party channels by
appointment of GRUH Referral Associates (GRAs). GRAs only
source loans while GRUH retains control over the credit,
legal and technical appraisals. Business sourced through GRAs
was 57% of total disbursements made during the year and
GRUH paid referral fees of Rs. 1.82 crores to GRAs for sourcing
of business.
GRUH is operating in seven states - Gujarat, Maharashtra,
Karnataka, Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, Chhattisgarh and
Tamil Nadu. GRUH established 6 new offices in these states
during the year. GRUH now has 95 retail offices across these
seven states.
GRUH conducts outreach programmes from each of the
retail offices to potential taluka places. The outreach
marketing programme also serves as collection centre for
collecting instalments besides providing services of enquiry
handling, file opening and effecting disbursements.
Disbursements
GRUH disbursed Rs. 780.33 crores during the year as against
Rs. 655.52 crores in the previous year. GRUH disbursed loans
of Rs. 655.33 crores (previous year Rs. 557.46 crores) for
home purchase, repair and renovation and registered a
growth of 18% in the retail home loan segment. GRUH
disbursed home loans to 13,870 families (previous year
12,538 families) and the average home loan to individuals
was Rs. 5.42 lacs during the year as against Rs. 4.65 lacs
during the previous year.
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GRUH disbursed loans of Rs. 46.29 crores (previous year
Rs. 35.35 crores) for purchase of NRP and Rs. 78.71 crores
(previous year Rs. 62.71 crores) to developers.
Cumulative disbursements as at March 31, 2010, stood at
Rs. 4,645.18 crores with Compounded Annualised Growth
Rate (CAGR) of 21% over the past 5 years period.
Insurance Products
GRUH has an arrangement with The Oriental Insurance
Company Limited for providing property insurance of the
property mortgaged. During the year, GRUH referred 13,428
customers under this arrangement in respect of property
cover of Rs. 885.58 crores.
GRUH also continues to persuade its customers to take
insurance cover on the life of the principal income earner as
the collateral for its loans. The policies are assigned in favour
of GRUH. During the year, 4,980 customers have taken the
life cover from various insurance companies in respect of life
cover of Rs. 170.75 crores.
Loans
The loan approval process at GRUH is decentralised with
varying approval limits. Approvals of lending proposals are
carried out by retail sanctioning committees up to the limits
delegated. Approvals beyond certain limits are referred to
the Committee of Management. Larger proposals, as
appropriate, are referred to the Board of Directors.
During the year, GRUH’s total outstanding loans increased
to Rs. 2,453.70 crores from Rs. 2,091.43 crores and
registered a growth of 17%. CAGR over the past 5 years
period has been 25%.
The total outstanding loans at variable rate stood at
Rs. 2,376.85 crores (previous year Rs. 1,992.13 crores),
which was 97% (previous year 95%) of the total outstanding
loans. Loans to total assets stood at 95% as at
March 31, 2010.

GRUH’s outstanding home loans to individuals of Rs. 2,228.49
crores and other loans to individuals for NRP of Rs. 149.13
crores constituted 91% and 6% respectively of the total
outstanding loans. GRUH experienced a prepayment ratio
of 12.57% (previous year 11.68%) in respect of individual
loans.  The outstanding loans to developers of Rs. 76.08
crores constituted 3% of the total outstanding loans.
The average yield realised on the loan assets during the
year was 12.14% (previous year 13.47%).
Recoveries and Provision for Contingencies
As per the prudential norms prescribed by NHB, an asset is
a non-performing asset (NPA) if the interest or principal
instalment is overdue for 90 days. HFCs are required to carry
provision at the prescribed rates depending on the ageing
of such overdues. As per the prudential norms, the income
on such NPAs is not to be recognised. Apart from the
provisioning on NPAs, HFCs are also required to carry a
provision of 0.40% on standard non-housing loans.
Accordingly, GRUH has identified NPAs, not recognised
income in respect of such NPAs and also made the required
provisions on NPAs and standard non-housing loans.
As per the prudential norms of NHB, GRUH was required to
carry a provision of Rs. 4.97 crores on NPAs of Rs. 27.14
crores and a provision of Rs. 0.78 crores on standard
non-housing loans of Rs. 194.31 crores as at March 31, 2010.
However, as a matter of prudence, over the years, GRUH
has been transferring additional amounts to provision for
contingencies. Provision for contingencies has been further
strengthened during the year by a transfer of Rs. 5.60 crores,
taking the total provision to Rs. 27.92 crores. With these
provisions, GRUH has not only provided for the standard
non-housing loan assets at the prescribed rate of 0.40%
but also provided fully for NPAs of Rs. 27.14 crores. As a
result, GRUH’s net NPAs stood at nil (previous year nil) of
the outstanding loans of Rs. 2,453.70 crores as at
March 31, 2010.
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During the year, GRUH has written off an amount of
Rs. 2.71 crores in respect of individual loans where the
recovery was difficult in the near future. However, GRUH
continued the recovery efforts in respect of written off
loans and could effect recoveries of Rs. 0.74 crores in respect
of these loans during the year.
GRUH carried properties aggregating to Rs. 5.82 crores
acquired in settlement of dues at the beginning of the year.
During the year, GRUH acquired properties aggregating to
Rs. 1.18 crores in settlement of dues under the SARFAESI
Act. GRUH also made efforts to dispose off the acquired
properties and realised Rs. 2.08 crores during the year. As
at March 31, 2010, GRUH carried properties worth Rs. 4.92
crores which was 1.71% of GRUH’s capital funds, well within
the 20% limit stipulated by NHB.
Investments
The Investment Committee constituted by the Board of
Directors is responsible for approving investments in line with
limits as set out by the board. The decisions to buy and sell
upto the approved limit delegated by the board are taken
by the Managing Director, who is assisted by two senior
managers. The investment function is carried out primarily
to support the core business of housing finance to ensure
adequate levels of liquidity and to maintain investment in
approved securities in respect of public deposits raised as
per the norms of NHB.
Considering the time lag between raising of resources and
its deployment, the surplus funds are generally being parked
with liquid fund schemes of mutual funds and short term
deposits with banks. During the year, GRUH earned Rs. 1.59
crores by way of dividends from mutual funds and Rs. 19.49
crores by way of interest on deposits placed with banks. At
the end of the year, GRUH maintained Rs. 117 crores by
way of short term deposits with banks.
As per NHB guidelines, HFCs are required to maintain
Statutory Liquid Ratio (SLR) in respect of public deposits
raised. Currently the SLR requirement is 12.50% of the
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public deposits. As at March 31, 2010, GRUH has invested
Rs. 34.71 crores in approved securities comprising of
government securities, government guaranteed bonds and
NHB bonds, which is higher than the limits prescribed
by NHB.
GRUH has classified its investments in SLR securities as long
term investments and valued them at cost. GRUH carries a
provision of Rs. 1.99 crores towards losses, if any, arising on
redemption of investments on maturity.
Borrowed Funds
GRUH has been raising funds for its lending activities from
banks by way of term loans, from NHB by way of refinance,
by private placement of non-convertible debentures (NCDs),
by issuance of commercial paper and mobilisation of public
deposits from the retail market.
Endeavours at GRUH always have been to maintain a prudent
mix of fixed rate borrowings and variable rate borrowings
with a view to minimise the weighted average cost of
borrowings and maintain a healthy spread on its lending
activities. GRUH has also been funding its operations through
short-term borrowings in the form of commercial papers
and short tenure loans from banks. While such a structure
enables GRUH to sustain a healthy net interest margin but
it raises the risks of asset liability mismatch. To minimise the
risk arising on account of such mismatch, GRUH has set
internal norms on the quantum of short-term borrowings so
that a prudent balance is maintained in keeping the cost of
funds low to an extent that the risk arising from the
mismatch could be managed.
The borrowings which are maturing within twelve months
from the end of the year, constituted 21% (previous year
24%) of the total borrowings of Rs. 2,323.12 crores
(previous year Rs. 2,245.15 crores). The outstanding
borrowings at fixed rate stood at Rs. 829.23 crores (previous
year Rs. 622.00 crores), which was 36% (previous year
28%) of the total outstanding borrowings.
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GRUH continued to borrow for both long and short term
from the banking sector at competitive rates. GRUH raised
fresh loans from banks aggregating to Rs. 700 crores during
the year and repaid loans aggregating to Rs. 557.50 crores.
Term loans from banks are secured by a negative lien on all
assets of the Company excluding the specific immovable
property mortgaged in favour of the Debenture Trustees
for issuance of NCDs and the Statutory Liquid Assets having
floating charge in favour of the Public Deposit Trustees
against Public Deposits. Outstanding balance of bank loans
as at March 31, 2010 was Rs. 900 crores.
GRUH availed refinance of Rs. 238.80 crores from NHB.
Outstanding refinance as at March 31, 2010 of Rs. 968.83
crores is secured by a negative lien on all assets of the
Company excluding the specific immovable property
mortgaged in favour of the Debenture Trustees for issuance
of NCDs and the Statutory Liquid Assets having floating
charge in favour of the Public Deposit Trustees against Public
Deposits.
During the year, GRUH raised Secured Redeemable NCDs
aggregating to Rs. 135 crores on a private placement basis
by issuance of 1,350 NCDs of Rs. 10 lacs each for a term of
5 years. The NCDs are secured by mortgage of a specific
immovable property and negative lien on all assets of the
Company excluding the Statutory Liquid Assets having
floating charge in favour of the Public Deposit Trustees
against Public Deposits.  GRUH’s NCDs are rated “LAA+” by
ICRA indicating high safety with regard to timely payment
of interest and principal. This rating carries a stable outlook.
The outstanding balance of NCDs as at March 31, 2010 was
Rs. 135 crores.
GRUH did not issue any subordinated debt during the year.
As at March 31, 2010, GRUH’s outstanding subordinated
debt stood at Rs. 40 crores. The debt is subordinated to
present and future senior indebtedness of the Company
and has been assigned rating of “LAA+” by ICRA, indicating
high safety with regard to timely payment of interest and
principal. This rating carries a stable outlook. Based on the
balance term to maturity, as at March 31, 2010, Rs. 16

crores of the book value of subordinated debt is considered
as Tier II capital under the guidelines issued by NHB for the
purpose of computation of CAR.
GRUH raised Rs. 905 crores through issuance of commercial
paper and retired Rs. 905 crores during the year. GRUH’s
commercial paper is rated “P1+” by CRISIL Limited (CRISIL),
indicating high safety as regards repayment. This rating carries
a stable outlook. There is no outstanding balance of
commercial paper as at March 31, 2010.
During the year, GRUH received fresh deposits of Rs. 70.73
crores, renewed deposits of Rs. 38.27 crores and
experienced outflow of deposits of Rs. 79.88 crores. The
renewal ratio (the ratio of deposits renewed to the deposits
maturing during the year) experienced by GRUH was 49%.
The outstanding deposits have grown from Rs. 250.18 crores
at the beginning of the year to Rs. 279.30 crores by the
end of the year and registered a growth of 12%. The
outstanding balance of public deposits constituted 12% of
the total outstanding borrowings as at March 31, 2010.
GRUH’s retail deposit programme is rated by ICRA and CRISIL.
Both the agencies retained GRUH’s deposit rating at “MAA+”
and “FAA+” respectively. The ratings indicate high safety as
regards repayment of principal and interest on deposits.
These ratings carry a stable outlook.
GRUH has been offering brokerage to its deposit referral
associates. The brokerage structure is linked to the term of
deposits mobilised. GRUH has been amortising the brokerage
paid over the tenure of deposits mobilised.
The average cost of total borrowings experienced during
the year was 7.89% per annum (previous year 10.01%).
NHB Guidelines and Prudential Norms
GRUH has complied with the guidelines issued by NHB
regarding accounting standards, prudential norms for asset
classification, income recognition, provisioning, capital
adequacy, concentration of credit, credit rating, “Know Your
Customer” (KYC), Fair Practices Code and real estate & capital
market exposures.
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GRUH had no investment in excess of the limits prescribed
by NHB with any one company or any single group of
companies. GRUH has not made investment in any of the
promoter group companies or in the stock markets.
GRUH’s total borrowings as at March 31, 2010 of
Rs. 2,323.12 crores were within the permissible limit of 16
times the net worth. Of this, the public deposits of
Rs. 279.30 crores were also within the limit of 5 times the
net owned funds as prescribed by NHB. GRUH has complied
with the guidelines issued by NHB regarding the ceiling on
interest rates offered on deposits and brokerage paid to
the deposit referral associates.
GRUH’s Capital Adequacy Ratio as at March 31, 2010 was
16.55% as against NHB’s prescribed limit of 12%. The Capital
Adequacy on account of Tier I Capital was 15.57% while
the Capital Adequacy on account of the Tier II Capital
was 0.98%.
Risk Management
GRUH has formulated a risk management framework which
lays the procedure for risk assessment and mitigation. The
Risk Management Committee (RMC) comprises of the
Managing Director as the chairman and the members include
senior managers holding key positions in the Company. The
RMC appraises the Audit Committee of the key risks associated
with the business of the Company and the measures to
mitigate them.
The Audit Committee has been periodically reviewing the
risk profile of the Company and evaluating the adherence
by the branches / functions of the systems and processes
in place for monitoring, evaluation, assessment and mitigation
of risk through a systematic and effective audit programme.
GRUH manages various risks associated with the mortgage
business. These risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. GRUH manages credit risk through internal
credit norms. Liquidity risk and interest rate risks arising out
of maturity mismatch of assets and liabilities are managed
through regular monitoring of the maturity profile.
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Internal Audit and Control
GRUH has instituted adequate internal control systems
commensurate with the nature of its business and the size
of its operations. Internal audit is carried out by independent
firm of chartered accountants and cover key areas of
business. All significant audit observations and follow-up
actions thereon are reported to the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee comprises of four directors of which three
are independent directors. The committee met four times
during the financial year under review.
Profit and Loss Account
Key elements of the profit and loss account for the year
ended March 31, 2010 are:
• Profit before tax grew by 36% and profit after tax

grew by 37%.
• Current year income tax provision amounted to

Rs. 29.69 crores as compared to Rs. 20.12 crores in
the previous year. The effective income tax rate for
the year is 31%. 

• Pre-tax return on average assets was 3.74% in the
current year as against 3.14% in the previous year.
Post-tax return on average assets was 2.73% as against
2.27% in the previous year.

• Return on average net worth for the year was 28.41%
as against 24.46% in the previous year.

• Ratio of net interest margin to average assets was
4.57% for the current year as against 3.85% in the
previous year.

• GRUH’s cost to income ratio was 19.91% for the year
as against 22.39% in the previous year.

• The Earning Per Share (Basic) was Rs. 19.89 for the
current year as against Rs. 14.51 for the previous year.

Human Resource
The enthusiasm of staff members continued to be high in
sustaining positive growth of disbursements and in
maintaining healthy recoveries. With the high level of
commitment and loyalty by staff members, GRUH is confident
to face the challenges of the tougher market conditions.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is a way of life and not a set of rules that necessitates taking into account the stakeholders’
interests in every business decision.
A key element of good governance - corporate or otherwise - is transparency projected through a code of good
governance which incorporates a system of checks and balances between key players – board, management, auditors
and stakeholders. Transparency in turn requires the enforcement of the right to information produced at each level of
interface, defining the real issue. All of this can only succeed if the responsibilities of each entity and their interface is
defined with great clarity and understood by all.
Investors worldwide are looking for new areas and avenues for investing their funds with emphasis on the safety of
their funds rather than high returns. These investors are looking forward to invest in those companies, which show
commitment to customers’ satisfaction, nurture long-term stakeholder value and hold the belief that good corporate
governance is a key driver in achieving long-term growth. Therefore, strong governance is indispensable for the
development of resilient and vibrant capital markets and is an important instrument for investor protection.
Board is responsible to shareholders for the company’s performance and growth. Companies cannot prosper without
the trust and support of their stakeholders. Corporate governance is often the distinguishing factor between
companies that advance competitively and those that lag behind. Today, there is sufficient empirical evidence to
suggest a strong and positive correlation between good corporate governance, earnings and stock value.
GRUH has been fortunate to have a strong set of values as a legacy from its promoter and holding company, Housing
Development Finance Corporation Limited (HDFC). GRUH believes this has been an important reason for its success.
Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance
At GRUH, right from inception the philosophy of good corporate governance has been influenced by HDFC in its
management practices. A commitment to customer satisfaction and nurturing of shareholder value has been the
cornerstone of GRUH. We, at GRUH, have endeavoured to adhere to the established and proven practices of HDFC in
maintaining corporate culture and the spirit in managing the business.
At GRUH, we have assigned the highest importance to the elements of good corporate governance like transparency,
accountability and responsibility in every sphere of management practice be it with customers, shareholders,
regulators, government, bankers, vendors or staff members. We have strived to introduce the highest level of
professionalism in carrying out the business with a strong belief that the organisation exists for serving a customer in a
manner that can yield the best possible return to a shareholder. The Board of Directors at GRUH have always
maintained the true spirit of being “Trustees” in directing the management team and also persisted in demanding
similar approach from the management team in practicing the business. The board has guided the management team
to practice professional ethics while dealing with all the stakeholders of GRUH.
With emphasis on transparency, integrity and accountability, the Board of Directors of GRUH adopted the principles of
good corporate governance by setting up an Audit Committee, Shareholders’ Grievance Committee and Compensation
Committee since 1997. GRUH, therefore, has developed systems that allow sufficient freedom to the board and the
management to take decisions towards the growth of the Company while remaining within the framework of effective
accountability. Given below is the report of the directors on corporate governance in accordance with the provisions of
the listing agreement.
Board of Directors
Composition
The Board of Directors comprises of nine directors, all professionals in their own right who bring in a wide range of skills
and experience to the board. All the directors of the Company, except the Managing Director and the Executive
Director are non-executive directors. Brief profiles of the directors are set out elsewhere in the annual report.
Four directors are independent directors. ‘Independent directors’ are directors who apart from receiving directors’
remuneration do not have any other material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, its promoters,
its management or its subsidiaries, which in the opinion of the board may affect independence of judgment of the
director.
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All directors are appointed by the members of the Company.
The composition of the board is in conformity with Clause 49 I (A) of the listing agreements. As per the Listing
Agreement, no director can be a member in more than 10 committees or act as chairman of more than 5 committees
across all public companies in which he is a director. Details of the Board of Directors in terms of their directorships/
memberships in committees (only audit and investor grievance) of public companies (excluding GRUH) are detailed as
under:
Sr. No. Directors No. of Directorships                          No. of Committees

Member Chairman
1 Mr. Keki M. Mistry 13 7 2
2 Mr. S.M. Palia 6 4 1
3 Mr. Rohit C. Mehta 3 - 1
4 Mr. Prafull Anubhai 4 2 3
5 Ms. Renu S. Karnad 12 3 2
6 Mr. K.G. Krishnamurthy 6 1 -
7 Mr. S.G. Mankad* 5 - -
8 Mr. Kamlesh Shah** - - -
9 Mr. Sudhin Choksey 1 1 -

Sr. Nos. 8 and 9 are executive directors. All other directors are non-executive directors.
Sr. Nos. 2, 3, 4 and 7 are independent directors.
   * appointed as an Additional Director in the Board Meeting dated January 14, 2010.
** appointed as an Additional Director designated as Executive Director in the Board Meeting dated April 16, 2010.
Tenure
As per the statute, two third of the directors should be retiring directors. One third of the directors are required to
retire every year and if eligible, these directors qualify for re-appointment. The Board of Directors vide its circular
resolution effected on March 29, 2010 had approved the re-appointment of Mr. Sudhin Choksey as the Managing
Director of the Company for a period of five years with effect from April 1, 2010, subject to the approval of the
members in the ensuing general meeting. The Board of Directors at its meeting held on April 16, 2010 had approved
the appointment of Mr. Kamlesh Shah as the Executive Director of the Company for a period of five years with effect
from April 16, 2010, subject to the approval of the members in the ensuing general meeting.
Responsibilities
The board represents the interest of the company’s shareholders, in optimising long-term value by providing the
management with guidance and strategic direction on the shareholders’ behalf. The board has a formal schedule of
matters reserved for its consideration and decision, which includes reviewing corporate performance, ensuring
adequate availability of financial resources, regulatory compliance, safeguard interest of shareholders and reporting to
shareholders.
Role of Independent Directors
The independent directors play an important role in deliberations at the board meetings and bring to the Company
their wide experience in the fields of finance, housing, accountancy, law and public policy. The Audit Committee
consists largely of independent directors. Board members ensure that their other responsibilities do not materially
impact their responsibility as a director of GRUH.
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Board Meetings
The meetings of the Board of Directors are generally held at the Registered Office of HDFC, the parent company.
Meetings are generally scheduled well in advance. The board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly
performance and the financial results.
The company secretary in consultation with the Managing Director prepares the agenda for the meetings. The agenda
papers are circulated to the directors in advance. The members of the board have access to all information of the
Company and are free to recommend inclusion of any matter in the agenda for discussion. Senior management is
invited to attend the board meetings and provide clarifications as and when required.
During the year, the board met 5 times. The meetings were held on April 17, 2009, June 30, 2009, July 21, 2009,
October 14, 2009, and January 14, 2010. The attendance of each director at the board meetings and at the last
annual general meeting is as under:
Directors No. of Board meetings attended Sitting fees paid (Rs.) Attendance at the last AGM
Mr. Keki M. Mistry 5 50000 Yes
Mr. S.M. Palia 3 30000 No
Mr. Rohit C. Mehta 5 50000 Yes
Mr. Prafull Anubhai 5 50000 Yes
Ms. Renu S. Karnad 4 40000 No
Mr. K.G. Krishnamurthy 5 50000 Yes
Mr. S.G. Mankad* 1 10000 -
Mr. Sudhin Choksey 5 - Yes
Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the respective meetings.
*appointed as an Additional Director in the Board Meeting dated January 14, 2010.
Board Committees
To enable better and more focused attention on the affairs of the Company, the board delegates particular matters to
committees of the directors set up for the purpose. These specialist committees prepare the groundwork for decision-
making and report at the subsequent board meeting.
The board is assisted by various committees – Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, Compensation Committee-
ESOS, Committee of Directors (NCD), Committee of Directors, Allotment Committee, Investment Committee and the
Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee - all chaired by an independent director.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is constituted in accordance with the provisions of Clause 49 II of the listing agreements and
Section 292 A of the Companies Act, 1956. The Audit Committee comprises of Mr. S.M. Palia (Chairman), Mr. Keki M.
Mistry, Mr. Rohit C. Mehta and Mr. Prafull Anubhai. The Audit Committee is chaired by an independent director. All the
members of the committee are financially literate and have accounting and financial management expertise. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee are in compliance with its requirements of the revised Clause 49 of the listing
agreement and include approving and implementing the audit procedures and techniques, reviewing the financial
reporting systems, internal control systems and control procedures and ensuring compliance of the regulatory
guidelines. Meetings of the Audit Committee are scheduled well in advance. The Audit Committee met four times
during the year under review. The committee reviewed the quarterly financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval.
The details of attendance at the Audit Committee meetings are as under:
Directors No. of meetings attended Sitting Fees paid (Rs.)
Mr. S.M. Palia 3 30,000
Mr. Keki M. Mistry 4 40,000
Mr. Rohit C. Mehta 4 40,000
Mr. Prafull Anubhai 4 40,000
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The committee reviews the reports of the internal auditors and statutory auditors along with the comments and action
taken reports of the management. The committee also reviews the asset-liability management system. The Audit Committee
also invites senior executives, as it considers appropriate to be present at the meetings of the committee. The head of
the internal audit attends the meetings of the Audit Committee.
Compensation Committee (Remuneration Committee)
The Compensation Committee comprises of Mr. S.M. Palia (Chairman), Mr. Keki M. Mistry and Ms. Renu S. Karnad. The
committee considers and approves salaries and other terms of the compensation package for the Managing Director. The
annual compensation of the Managing Director is recommended by the committee, approved by the board and is within
the limits set by the members at the annual general meetings. The committee met once during the year.
The details of attendance at the Compensation Committee meeting are as under:
Directors No. of meetings attended Sitting Fees paid (Rs.)
Mr. S.M. Palia 1 10,000
Mr. Keki M. Mistry 1 10,000
Ms. Renu S. Karnad 1 10,000
Shareholders’/ Investors’ Grievance Committee
The Shareholders’/ Investors’ Grievance Committee comprises of Mr. S.M. Palia (Chairman), Mr. Prafull Anubhai and Mr.
Sudhin Choksey. The committee looks into redressal of shareholder and investor complaints. The committee met four
times during the year.
The details of attendance at the committee meetings are as under:
Directors No. of meetings attended Sitting Fees paid (Rs.)
Mr. S.M. Palia 3 30,000
Mr. Prafull Anubhai 4 40,000
Mr. Sudhin Choksey 4 -
In order to expedite the process of share transfer, the board has delegated the authority to approve share transfers
to Mr. Sudhin Choksey (Managing Director) and Mr. Marcus Lobo (Company Secretary/Compliance Officer). Share
transfer formalities are normally attended to three times in a month. The details of share transfers are reported to the
Board of Directors.
During the year, the Company did not receive any complaint from the shareholders. There are no pending share
transfers.
There is no non-compliance by the Company on any matter related to the capital markets during the last three years.
Similarly, there are no penalties, strictures imposed by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any statutory authority on any
matter related to capital market.
Remuneration to Directors
During the year, the Managing Director was paid a gross remuneration of Rs. 86.48 lacs. Elements of the remuneration
package comprise of salary, perquisites and other benefits including ex-gratia as approved by the members at the
annual general meeting held on June 14, 2005 and revised thereafter at the annual general meeting held on July 25,
2008. The details of managerial remuneration are as per Note 18 forming part of the accounts.
Non-executive directors are paid sitting fees for attending the meetings of the board or committee(s). No other
payment is made to the non-executive directors.
Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS)
During the year, no new options have been granted under the ESOS. The disclosure as required under Clause 12.1 of
the SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, as amended,
have been made in the annexure to the Directors’ Report.
Proceeds from Private Placement Issues
During the year under review, the Company issued non-convertible debentures. Details of these issues are provided in
the Directors’ Report. As specified in the respective offer documents, the funds were utilised for the purpose of on
lending for housing finance. Details thereof were provided to the Audit Committee and Board of Directors.
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Transactions with Non-executive Directors
The non-executive directors of the Company do not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions vis-à-vis
Company.
Shareholding of Non-executive Directors
The number of shares held by non-executive directors as on March 31, 2010 is as follows:
Directors No. of equity shares held
Mr. Keki M. Mistry 8,290
Mr. S.M. Palia 5,000
Mr. Rohit C. Mehta 20,905
Mr. Prafull Anubhai 5,000
Ms. Renu S. Karnad 6,223
Mr. K.G. Krishnamurthy 6,165
Mr. S.G. Mankad -
Share Dealing Code
In October 2002, the Company framed a share dealing code for its employees based on the SEBI (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992. The code ensures that the employees deal in the shares of the Company only at a
time when any price sensitive information that could be known to the employee is also known to the public at large.
This code is applicable to every employee and director of the Company.
All directors and designated employees of the Company have disclosed details of their shareholding, dealings in the
shares of the Company and any changes thereof, during the financial year and as at the end of the financial year in
compliance of the provisions of the said code. During the year, there has been no violation of the provision of the said
code.
Code of Conduct
The Company has framed and adopted a Code of Conduct, which is applicable to all directors and members of the
senior management in terms of Clause 49 V of the Listing Agreement. The said code, which came into effect from
January 1, 2006, lays the general principles designed to guide all directors and members of the senior management in
making ethical decisions.
All directors and members of the senior management have confirmed their adherence to the provisions of the said
code. The said code has been posted on the website of the Company i.e., www.gruh.com.
Disclosures
Related party transactions
During the year under review, there were no materially significant individual transactions with related parties or other
persons, which were not in the normal course of business or on an arm’s length basis that may be perceived to have a
potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.
Transactions with related parties entered into by the Company in the normal course of business were placed before
the Audit Committee. Details of related party transaction are included in the notes to the accounts.
Accounting Standards / Treatment
The Company confirms that it has complied with the applicable Accounting Standards notified by Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 from time to time and no accounting treatment other than what has been
prescribed in the Accounting Standards has been followed.
Annual General Meetings
The Annual General Meetings for the last 3 years were held on July 27, 2007, July 25, 2008 and June 30, 2009. The
AGMs were held at H.T. Parekh Convention Centre, Ahmedabad Management Association (AMA), ATIRA Campus,
Ahmedabad. Three special resolutions were passed at the previous three Annual General Meetings. No resolution was
passed using postal ballots.



27

Dematerialisation of Shares
GRUH’s shares were available for trading with National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) w.e.f. July 15, 2000 and with
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) w.e.f December 22, 2001. The ISIN allotted to GRUH’s equity
shares is INE580B01011.
As at March 31, 2010, 97.20% of equity shares of GRUH have been dematerialised by members through NSDL and
CDSL.
Listing of Equity Shares
GRUH’s shares are listed on The Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
The Stock Code Nos. are : BSE: 511288;        NSE: GRUH
The Company has arranged for the payment of the listing fees for the year 2010-2011 as per the listing agreement
with the respective stock exchanges.
Delisting of Equity Shares
Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009, GRUH has
completed the process of voluntary delisting of equity shares with the Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Ltd. (ASEL) and
the equity shares of GRUH have been voluntarily delisted from ASEL with effect from November 25, 2009, as intimated
vide their letter no. ASEL/2009/977 dated November 24, 2009.
Shareholder Relations
GRUH has over 14,100 shareholders. The main source of information for the shareholders is the Annual Report that
includes inter alia, the Directors’ Report, the shareholders’ information and the audited financial results. GRUH
recognizes the importance of regular dialogue with its shareholders to ensure that the Company’s strategy is clearly
understood. Since the year 2002, the Annual Report has also included the Report of Directors on Corporate
Governance and Management Discussion and Analysis Report. Shareholders are intimated through the press and
GRUH’s website, www.gruh.com of the quarterly performance and financial results of the Company. The Company
also filed statements / reports on the Electronic Data Information Filing and Retrieval (EDIFAR) website. Filings on the
EDIFAR website has been discontinued by SEBI vide its circular dated April 16, 2010 with effect from April 1, 2010.
Shareholders have an opportunity to attend the Annual General Meeting at which the business outlook is presented
and relevant aspects of the Company’s operations are discussed. In addition, the Corporate Office as well as the
Registrar’s Office (RTA), serves as a contact point for shareholders on issues such as share transfers, dividends and
announcements.
Details of directors to be appointed/re-appointed at the twenty-fourth AGM are provided as an annex to the notice
convening the said AGM. The annual report also contains a section on ‘Shareholders’ Information’ which inter alia
provides information relating to the AGM date, time and venue, shareholding pattern, distribution of shareholding, top
shareholders, the monthly high and low quotations of the equity share during the year and other information as
required under Clause 49 of the listing agreements.
Management Discussion and Analysis Report
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Directors’ Report.
CEO / CFO Certification
In accordance with the requirements of Clause 49 of the listing agreements, Mr. Sudhin Choksey, the Managing
Director and CEO and Mr. Jayesh Jain, the CFO of the Company, have certified to the Board that to the best of their
knowledge and belief, the financial statements and cash flow statements present a true and fair view of the
Company’s affairs.
Non-mandatory requirements
The Company had adopted the non-mandatory provisions relating to the Compensation Committee. The quarterly
results are published in financial newspapers, posted on the Company’s web site and sent to shareholders on request.
The Company is also moving towards a regime of unqualified financial statements. The Company shall endeavour to
adopt the other non-mandatory requirements, as and when necessary.
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE

To the Members of GRUH Finance Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by GRUH Finance Limited, for the year ended
on 31st March, 2010, as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges.
The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions
of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the
Company.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us and the representation
made by the Directors and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in clause 49 of the above mentioned Listing Agreement.
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For SORAB S. ENGINEER & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Mumbai CA. M. P. ANTIA
April 16, 2010  Partner

Membership No. 7825

Compliance
The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements as stipulated under Clause 49 of the listing agreements.
The Company has submitted the quarterly compliance status report to the stock exchanges within the prescribed time
limit.
Risk Management
The Company has formulated a risk management framework, which lays the procedures for risk assessment and
mitigation. The Risk Management Committee (RMC) comprises of the Managing Director as the chairman and the
members include senior managers holding key positions in the Company. The RMC apprises the Audit Committee of the
key risks associated with the business of the Company and the measures to mitigate them.
Going Concern
The directors are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue its business for the foreseeable
future and consequently consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Mumbai Keki M. Mistry
April 16, 2010 Chairman

Declaration
This is to confirm that for the year 2009-10, all Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct of GRUH.

Mumbai Marcus Lobo Sudhin Choksey
April 16, 2010 Company Secretary Managing Director / CEO
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Review of the Chairman of the Audit Committee of Directors

The Audit Committee of directors, comprising of four non-executive directors – majority of them independent directors -
met four times during the last financial year. The Committee reviewed with the Management and the Auditors all the
issues which are required to be reviewed by the Audit Committee pursuant to the Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchanges as also the Companies Act, 1956, which inter alia included review of MD&A of financial conditions and results of
operations, and other matters pertaining to disclosures of related party transactions and disclosures of accounting treatment.
The Audit Committee has also reviewed the observations of the Internal and Statutory Auditors in relation to all areas of
operations of the Company as also the internal control systems. In addition, the Committee has been examining all areas
of risks associated with the business of the Company and has reviewed the measures initiated by the Company for
mitigating these risks. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the actions taken by the Company on various observations
and queries of the Auditors. The Audit Committee oversees the implementation of the Asset Liability Management and
reviews the ALM position vis-à-vis risk management.

S. M. PALIA
Chairman

Audit Committee of Directors

Review of the Chairman of the Compensation Committee of Directors

The Compensation Committee of directors, which primarily reviews the compensation payable to the Managing Director of
the Company, met once during the last financial year. The Compensation Committee comprises of three non-executive
directors. The Committee has considered the contribution of the Managing Director in development of business and
improving the performance of the Company and kept in view salaries paid to senior executives of other companies in the
financial and banking sector, whilst fixing the remuneration of the Managing Director of the Company.

S. M. PALIA
Chairman

Compensation Committee of Directors

Review of the Chairman of the Shareholders’/ Investors’ Grievance Committee of Directors

The Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee of directors, comprising of three directors met four times during the
last financial year. The Committee reviewed the different activities being carried out by the secretarial department of the
Company and also reviewed the share transfers and dematerialisation of shares during the period.  The Committee also
reviewed the steps taken by the Company to redress the grievances of the investors. There were no complaints pending
for being resolved during the year.

S. M. PALIA
Chairman

Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee of Directors
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholders / Investors service :
GRUH has its in-house secretarial department under the overall
supervision of Mr. Marcus Lobo – company secretary/
compliance officer. For any assistance regarding share transfers,
transmissions, change of address, non receipt of dividend,
duplicate/missing share certificates and other matters
pertaining to your shares, please write to the following
address:
Secretarial Department : Registrar & Transfer Agent :
GRUH Finance Ltd. MCS Limited
“GRUH” Unit : “GRUH”
Netaji Marg, 101, Shatdal Complex,
Nr. Mithakhali Six Roads, 1st Floor, Opp. Bata Show Room,
Ellisbridge, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad 380 006 Ahmedabad- 380 009
Tel : 079–32901222- 1223; Tel : 079–26582878 and 26584027
Fax : 079-2656 0649 Fax : 079-26581296
Email:investorcare@gruh.com
Shareholding Pattern as at March 31, 2010 :
Category No. of Total No. % to

Share- of Shares Capital
holders Held

Promoter – HDFC Ltd. 1 21307785 61.36
Public /Resident Indians 13575 6473941 18.64
Financial Institutions,
Mutual Funds &  Banks 8 1200448 3.46
Corporate Bodies 384 760999 2.19
Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs) 14 3713184 10.69
Non-Resident Indians / OCBs 145 1268793 3.66
                                           Total 14127 34725150 100.00

Top ten shareholders of GRUH as at March 31, 2010 :
No of % of

Name shares Capital
Housing Development  Finance
Corporation Limited 21307785 61.36
Acacia Partners, LP 1103775 3.18
Dr. Sanjeev Arora 677450 1.95
DSP Blackrock Small and Midcap Fund 544611 1.57
DSP Blackrock Equity Fund 510231 1.47
The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC
as depository of First State Asia
Pacific Sustainability Fund 500139 1.44
Acacia Institutional Partners, LP 467200 1.35
Ward Ferry Management Limited A/c.
WF India Reconnaissance Fund Limited 417000 1.20
The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC
as depository of First State Indian
Sub-continent Fund 307993 0.89
The Royal Bank Of Scotland PLC
As Depository Of First State GL
Emrg Mkts Sustainability Fund 259542 0.75
Listing of Equity Shares :
GRUH’s shares are listed on The Bombay Stock Exchange
Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
The Stock Code Nos. are : BSE: 511288; NSE: GRUH
The Company has arranged for the payment of the listing
fees for the year 2010-2011 as per the listing agreement
with the respective stock exchanges.
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Delisting of Equity Shares :
Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009, GRUH has
completed the process of voluntary delisting of equity shares
with the Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Ltd. (ASEL) and the
equity shares of GRUH have been voluntarily delisted from
ASEL with effect from November 25, 2009, as intimated vide
their letter no. ASEL/2009/977 dated November 24, 2009.
Listing of Debt Securities :
GRUH’s NCDs (Series – B-001 aggregating to Rs. 40 crores)
are listed on the Wholesale Debt Market (WDM) segment
of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).
Debenture Trustees :
IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited, Asian Building, Ground
Floor, 17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai - 400 021.
Stock Market Data :
Monthly high and low quotations as well as the volume of
shares traded at the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited for
2009-2010 along with the BSE Sensex are as follows:
Month Highest Lowest Volume BSE

(Rs.) (Rs.) of Shares Sensex
traded (monthly

close)
April 2009 130.25 86.10 1309509 11403
May 2009 175.95  117.20 190673 14625
June 2009 215.25 150.00 993975 14493
July 2009 219.00 180.00 512777 15670
August 2009 199.90 181.15 192613 15666
September 2009 238.00 191.25 503842 17126
October 2009 245.00 190.00 349243 15896
November 2009 223.00 192.30 153254 16926
December 2009 241.90 197.15 1167868 17464
January 2010 226.85 193.00 505100 16357
February 2010 217.75 190.45 345836 16429
March 2010 220.10 200.05 203251 17527
April 2010 264.00 213.50 599423 17558
Distribution of shareholding as at March 31, 2010 :
No. of Shares held                 Folios                             Shares

Numbers % Numbers %
Upto 500 12212 86.44 2015932 5.81
501 to  1000 997 7.06 737304 2.12
1001 to  5000 716 5.07 1540251 4.44
5001 to 10000 93 0.66 685365 1.97
10001 to 50000 81 0.57 1504963 4.33
50001 to 100000 9 0.07 696791 2.01
100001 and above 19 0.13 27544544 79.32
                  Total 14127 100.00 34725150 100.00

Dematerialisation of Shares :
As at March 31, 2010, 97.20% of equity shares of GRUH
have been dematerialised by shareholders through National
Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services
(India) Limited.
ISIN for NSDL & CDSL : INE  580B01011
The status of shares which have been dematerialised and
shares which are held in physical form as at March 31, 2010
are as under:
Particulars No of shares (%)
Shares held in physical form 973561 2.80
Shares held in electronic form 33751589 97.20
Total Shares 34725150 100.00

Details regarding dividend paid during the last 7 years :
Year Rate   Book Closure      AGM      Payment

(%)         Date      Date         Date

2002-03 15 June 27, 2003 to
July 4, 2003 July 4, 2003 July  5, 2003

2003-04 18 June 18, 2004 to
June 28, 2004 June 28, 2004 June 30, 2004

2004-05 21 June 3, 2005 to
June 14, 2005 June 14, 2005 June 16, 2005

2005-06 25 May 12, 2006 to
May 18, 2006 July 7, 2006 July 7, 2006

2006-07 30 June 1, 2007 to
June 7, 2007 July 27, 2007 July 27, 2007

2007-08 40 July 18, 2008 to
July 25, 2008 July 25, 2008 July 25, 2008

2008-09 48 June 18, 2009 to
June 30, 2009 June 30, 2009 June 30, 2009

NB: Shareholders who have not received the dividends as
aforesaid are requested to kindly contact the secretarial
department.
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Unclaimed Dividend and Deposits :
The Company has transferred all unclaimed/unpaid dividend
up to the financial year 2001-2002 to the General Revenue
Account of the Central Government or to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund, as applicable.  The Company
has transferred matured deposits and interest thereon for
the year 2001-2002 remaining unclaimed / unpaid, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund, in accordance with
the current regulations.
Members who have either not received or have not encashed
their dividend warrant(s) for the financial years 2002-2003
to 2008-2009 are requested to claim the unpaid dividend
from the Company before transfer to the above mentioned
fund. After transfer of unpaid/unclaimed dividend amount
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund, the same
cannot be claimed subsequently.
Dividends that have not been claimed by the shareholders
for the financial year 2002-2003 will have to be transferred
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in August
2010 in accordance with the current regulations.
Nomination Facility :
Where shares are held in single name, in case of an
unfortunate death of the shareholder, the process of
transmission is cumbersome as it requires submission of
succession certificate / letter of probate / will, etc.
Shareholders holding shares in single name and in physical
form are requested to submit the prescribed form 2B (in
duplicate) to the secretarial department to avail of the
nomination facility. Shareholders may contact the secretarial
department for the said form. Shareholders holding shares
in demat form are requested to contact their depository
participants for availing the nomination facility.
Financial year :
The Company follows financial year April to March.
Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants :
The Company does not have any GDRs/ ADRs / Warrants or
any convertible instruments.

Book Closure :
The register of members and share transfer books of the
Company will remain closed from Thursday, June 17, 2010
to Tuesday, June 29, 2010, both days inclusive.
Dividend Payment :
The Board of Directors of GRUH has recommended a dividend
of 65% (Rs.6.50 per share) for the financial year ended
March 31, 2010 for approval of the shareholders at the
annual general meeting.
Dividend entitlement is as follows :
(i) For shares held in physical form: shareholders whose

names appear on the register of members of the
Company as on Thursday, June 17, 2010.

(ii) For shares held in electronic form:  beneficial owners
whose names appear in the statement of beneficial
position furnished by NSDL and CDSL as at the close
of business hours on Wednesday, June 16, 2010.

Dividend, if declared by the members shall be paid on or
after June 29, 2010 but within the statutory time limit.
24TH Annual General Meeting
Date : June 29, 2010
Day : Tuesday
Time : 10.30 a.m.
Venue : H.T. Parekh Convention Centre,

Ahmedabad Management Association (AMA),
ATIRA Campus, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg,
Ahmedabad 380 015.

Measuring Shareholders’ Value :
At GRUH, we believe in maximizing the wealth of its
shareholders and our endeavors are in the direction of
providing maximum value to our shareholders either in the
form of dividend or capital appreciation. The value of
Shareholders’ return is measured as follows :

Market Capitalisation

800

700

600

500

400

300

200

100

0

119.38

756.14
(Rs. in Crores)

2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10

Book Value per Share (Rupees)

0

20

40

60

80

100

27.72

76.21

2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10



33

Movement in Share Price (Rupees)
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EBIDTA stands for Earnings before Interest, Depreciation,
Tax and other appropriations. Hence, it can be calculated
by adding back the figures of interest, depreciation and
other appropriations to the amount of Profit Before Tax
(PBT).  It indicates that the value of enterprise is equal to
number of times of the Company’s earnings. As the figures
of Interest, depreciation and tax are added back, it makes
the comparison between two enterprises easier by
eliminating all the accounting and tax differences.
The above measure for GRUH for a period of five years is as
follows : -

(Rs. in Crores)
Particulars
as on March 31,  2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Number of
Equity Shares
(Crores) 3.47 3.47 3.46 3.46 2.65
Market
Price (Rs.)* 217.75 93.70 154.35 137.35 93.30
Market
Capitalisation 756.14 324.69 534.79 475.71 247.25
Total Debt 2323.12 2245.15 1773.04 1305.25 1079.80
Cash 135.60 71.24 157.66 82.93 66.92
Enterprise
Value(EV) 2943.66 2498.60 2150.17 1698.03 1260.13
EBIDTA 276.06 271.72 181.17 123.89 88.40
EV/ EBIDTA
(Times) 10.66 9.20 11.87 13.71 14.25
TOTAL INCOME 309.06 295.28 202.59 146.63 104.20
EV/TOTAL
INCOME (Times) 9.52 8.46 10.61 11.58 12.09
*Considered as the price on the stock exchange where
maximum number of shares have been traded.

A.  Total Shareholders’ Return :
Total Shareholder’s return includes the dividend paid by the
Company as well as the capital appreciation of the shares of
the Company in the stock markets. During the past five
years return to shareholders has been as follows :

(Rs. in Crores)
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06
Closing Market
Capitalisation 756.14 324.69 534.79 475.71 247.25
Opening Market
Capitalisation 324.69 534.79 475.71 247.25 119.38
Money raised
during the year
from Shareholders 1.17 0.03 0.08 60.87 -
Net Capital
Appreciation/
(Depreciation) 430.28 (210.13) 59.00 167.59 127.87
Dividend
including
dividend tax 26.32 19.46 16.22 12.16 7.55
Total Gain /
Loss 456.60 (190.67) 75.22 179.75 135.42
Gain / (Loss)
to Opening
Market
Capitalisation (%) 140.63 (35.65) 15.81 72.70 113.44
B.   Enterprise Value :
Enterprise Value (EV) measures the value of a Company as
on a particular date. It is calculated by making adjustments
to the market capitalisation of a Company. The formula for
measuring Enterprise Value is :
Enterprise Value (EV) = Market Capitalisation + Total Debt -
Cash Balance
With the Enterprise Value as a measure, the companies can
be compared easily irrespective of their capital structure.
Moreover, Enterprise Value is used to calculate the ratio of
EV to EBIDTA multiple.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF GRUH FINANCE LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of GRUH Finance Limited, (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2010, the Profit
and Loss Account and also the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended on that date both annexed
thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2003 (“Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms
of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report that:
i) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary

for the purposes of our audit;
ii) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our

examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purpose of our audit have been received from the
branches not visited by us;

iii) The Balance  Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account;

iv) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report comply
with the applicable accounting standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

v) On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on 31st March, 2010 and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2010 from being
appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956;  and

vi) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts give
the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:
(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2010;
(b) In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
(c) In the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For SORAB S. ENGINEER & CO.
Chartered Accountants

CA. M. P. Antia
Mumbai Partner
April 16, 2010   Membership No. 7825

Firm Registration No. 110417W
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Re : GRUH FINANCE LIMITED
Referred to in Paragraph 3 of our Report of even date,
(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of

fixed assets.
(b) Some of the fixed assets were physically verified by the management during the year in accordance with a regular

programme of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable
intervals. We are informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) No substantial part of fixed assets has been disposed off during the year.
(ii) (a) The stocks of acquired and/or developed properties have been physically verified during the year by the management.

In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.
(b) The procedures of physical verification of stock of acquired and developed properties followed by the management

are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.
(c) The Company is maintaining proper records of acquired and developed properties. No discrepancy was noticed on

verification between the physical properties and the book records.
(iii) The Company has not granted / taken any loan to / from Companies, firms or other parties covered in the register

maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Consequently, requirement of clauses (iii,b), (iii,c),
(iii,d), (iii,e), (iii,f) and (iii,g) of paragraph 4 of the order are not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there exists an adequate internal
control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to acquisition
of properties, fixed assets and with regard to the sale of properties and services. During the course of our audit, we
have not observed any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in internal controls.

(v) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of
the opinion that there were no contracts or arrangements that needs to be entered in the register maintained
under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Consequently, requirement of clauses (v,a) and (v,b) of paragraph
4 of the order are not applicable.

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Sections 58A and 58AA of the Companies Act, 1956, the Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions,
2001 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975 with regard to the deposits accepted from the
public. No order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

(vii) In  our  opinion,  the  internal  audit  functions  carried  out  during  the  year  by  firm of Chartered Accountants
appointed by the Management have been commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its
business.

(viii) The Company is not engaged in production, processing, manufacturing or mining activities. Therefore, the provisions
of clause (viii) of paragraph 4 of the order are not applicable.

(ix) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it.
Central Government has till date not prescribed the amount of cess payable under section 441A of the Companies
Act, 1956.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income
Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Cess were in arrears as at March 31, 2010 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, following amounts have not been deposited as on March
31, 2010 on account of any dispute:
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Particulars Financial year to which Forum where matter is pending Amount (Rs.)
the matter pertains

Income Tax 2005-06 Income Tax Appellate Tribunal 1,52,79,831/-
Income Tax 2006-07 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 3,61,99,031/-
Fringe Benefit Tax 2005-06 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 7,79,931/-
Fringe Benefit Tax 2006-07 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 10,22,716/-
Interest Tax 1999-00 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 1,54,183/-
Interest Tax 1996-97 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 5,47,016/-

(x) The Company neither has any accumulated losses nor has incurred any cash losses during the financial year
covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues
to banks or debenture holders.

(xii) The loans granted by the Company are primarily secured / partly secured by the equitable mortgage of the
property. Based on our examination of documents and records and evaluation of internal controls, we are of the
opinion that the Company has maintained adequate documents and records wherever it has granted loans and
advances on the basis of collateral security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

(xiii) The Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi/mutual benefit fund/society. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xiii) of
paragraph 4 of the order are not applicable.

(xiv) The Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. Therefore, the
provisions of clause (xiv) of paragraph 4 of the order are not applicable.

(xv) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial Institutions.

(xvi) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, in our
opinion, the term loans obtained during the year were, prima facie, applied by the Company for the purpose for
which they were obtained, other than temporary deployment pending application.

(xvii) According to the Cash Flow Statement and other records examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, on an overall basis, funds raised on short-term basis have not, prima facie, been used during the year
for long-term investments.

(xviii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
of shares during the year.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the Company has
created security and charges in respect of Debentures issued during the year.

(xx) The Company has not raised any money by public issue during the year.
(xxi) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud

on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year, although there have been few instances of
loans becoming doubtful of recovery consequent upon fraudulent misrepresentation by borrowers, the amounts
whereof are not material in the context and size of the Company and the nature of its business and which have
been provided for.

For SORAB S. ENGINEER & CO.
Chartered Accountants

CA. M. P. Antia
Mumbai Partner
April 16, 2010   Membership No. 7825

Firm Registration No. 110417W
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BALANCE  SHEET  AS  AT  MARCH  31, 2010
 (Rupees)

Schedule March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009
FUNDS EMPLOYED
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share Capital 1 34,72,51,500 34,65,19,600
Reserves and Surplus 2 229,90,09,283 186,21,82,971

264,62,60,783 220,87,02,571
LOAN FUNDS 3 2323,12,22,922 2245,15,33,240

2587,74,83,705 2466,02,35,811
APPLICATION OF   FUNDS
LOANS 4 2453,69,87,481 2091,43,12,893
INVESTMENTS 5 32,71,95,511 12,77,79,263
CURRENT ASSETS,  LOANS  AND ADVANCES
Current Assets, Loans and Advances 6 162,41,64,410 416,07,35,356
Less    :  Current Liabilities and Provisions 7 79,94,27,666 68,50,95,222
NET CURRENT ASSETS 82,47,36,744 347,56,40,134
FIXED ASSETS 8
Gross Block 20,11,18,539 19,77,00,893
Less     :    Depreciation 10,59,83,296 10,63,82,867
Net Block 9,51,35,243 9,13,18,026

DEFERRED TAX ASSET                     (Note 16) 9,34,28,726 5,11,85,495

2587,74,83,705 2466,02,35,811
Notes Forming Part of Accounts 14
Significant Accounting Policies 15

Schedules 1 to 15 annexed hereto form part of Accounts.
As per our report of even date attached
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

CA. M. P. Antia Keki M. Mistry Directors
Partner Chairman S. M. Palia

Rohit C. Mehta
Prafull Anubhai
Renu S. Karnad
K. G. Krishnamurthy

Mumbai Sudhin Choksey Marcus Lobo
April 16, 2010 Managing Director Company Secretary
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE  YEAR  ENDED  ON  MARCH   31, 2010
                  (Rupees)

Schedule Current Year Previous Year
INCOME
Operating Income 9 296,02,36,882 286,69,20,277
Fees and Other Charges 12,16,44,513 7,43,92,061
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets(Net) 9,24,564 3,25,906
Bad Debts Recovered 73,58,749 1,02,84,553
Other Income 4,29,742 8,40,975

309,05,94,450 295,27,63,772
EXPENDITURE AND CHARGES
Interest and Other charges 10 180,20,02,950 201,18,09,759
Staff Expenses 11 12,41,15,974 10,83,87,293
Establishment Expenses 12 3,67,02,431 2,61,78,510
Other Expenses 13 7,86,85,256 6,35,11,716
Depreciation 8 1,43,49,687 96,37,571
Bad Debts Written Off 2,71,30,625 1,49,64,930
Provision for Contingencies 6,33,59,731 2,25,00,000

214,63,46,654 225,69,89,779
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FOR THE YEAR 94,42,47,796 69,57,73,993
Less : - Provision for Tax

Current Tax 29,69,05,349 20,12,41,308
Deferred Tax(Net)  (4,22,43,231)  (97,26,845)
Fringe Benefit Tax 0 15,00,000

25,46,62,118 19,30,14,463
PROFIT AFTER TAX FOR THE YEAR 68,95,85,678 50,27,59,530
Balance brought forward from last year 27,64,22,725 13,92,60,286
AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 96,60,08,403 64,20,19,816

APPROPRIATIONS  :
Special Reserve 17,50,00,000 12,00,00,000
General Reserve 6,90,00,000 5,10,00,000
Proposed Dividend 22,57,13,475 16,63,29,408
Tax on Proposed Dividend 3,74,88,187 2,82,67,683
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 45,88,06,741 27,64,22,725

96,60,08,403 64,20,19,816
Earning Per Share                                       (Note 15)
Basic 19.889 14.510
Diluted 19.847 14.510
Notes Forming Part of Accounts 14
Significant Accounting Policies 15
Schedules 1 to 15 annexed hereto form part of Accounts.
As per our report of even date attached
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
CA. M. P. Antia Keki M. Mistry Directors
Partner Chairman S. M. Palia

Rohit C. Mehta
Prafull Anubhai
Renu S. Karnad
K. G. Krishnamurthy

Mumbai Sudhin Choksey Marcus Lobo
April 16, 2010 Managing Director Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010 (Rupees)

Current Year Previous Year

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit after tax and extraordinary items 68,95,85,678 50,27,59,530
Add : Provision for Tax 25,46,62,118 19,30,14,463
Profit before tax and extraordinary items 94,42,47,796 69,57,73,993
Adjustments  for :
Depreciation 1,43,49,687 96,37,571
Brokerage Expenses written off 65,36,130 59,71,982
Bad Debts Written off 2,71,30,625 1,49,64,930
Retirement benefits 31,82,164 41,12,761
Loss on Sale of Acquired Properties 16,46,932 12,67,097
Provision for Contingencies 5,59,90,114 1,78,39,944
Provision for Loss on Redemption of Investments 73,69,617 46,60,056
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets  (9,24,564)  (3,25,906)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 105,95,28,501 75,39,02,428
Adjustments for :
Current Assets 316,11,53,236  (278,06,74,130)
Current Liabilities (1,41,15,962) 4,05,17,862
Brokerage paid  (45,55,526)  (93,55,613)
Stock of Acquired and/or Developed Properties 73,97,845  (1,83,53,235)
Investments  (Net)  (20,67,85,865) 3,39,82,200
Cash generated from operations 400,26,22,229  (197,99,80,488)
Income Tax  Paid   (Net)  (27,96,72,294)  (25,15,37,622)
Net cash from Operations 372,29,49,935  (223,15,18,110)
Loans disbursed (Net)  (365,88,49,990)  (317,48,93,994)
Net cash from / (used in) Operating Activities 6,40,99,945  (540,64,12,104)

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed assets  (2,11,99,188)  (1,60,73,114)
Sale of Fixed Assets 39,56,848 21,31,690
Net cash used in Investing activities  (1,72,42,340)  (1,39,41,424)

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Share Capital - Equity 7,31,900 42,610
Securities Premium Received 1,09,38,194 2,42,877
Securities Premium - Utilisation  (7,51,247)  (36,51,980)
Borrowings (Net) 77,96,89,682 472,11,13,540
Dividend paid  (16,53,11,852)  (13,78,13,392)
Dividend tax paid  (2,82,67,683)  (2,35,53,506)
Unclaim Dividend paid  (3,45,999)  (2,16,363)
Net cash from Financing Activities 59,66,82,995 455,61,63,786
Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalent 64,35,40,600  (86,41,89,742)
Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year 71,24,11,868 157,66,01,610
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year 135,59,52,468 71,24,11,868

64,35,40,600  (86,41,89,742)
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE

To the Members of GRUH Finance Limited
We have verified the above Cash Flow Statement of GRUH Finance Limited, derived from the audited financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2010 and found the same to be drawn in accordance therewith and also with the requirements of
Clause 32 of the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchange.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

CA. M. P. Antia
Mumbai                   (Partner)
April 16, 2010 Membership No. 7825

Notes :-
1. Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year
(as per Schedule 6) 374,88,18,375 159,55,07,534
Less : Deposits with Scheduled Banks for more than 3 months period 303,64,06,507 1,89,05,924
Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year as above 71,24,11,868 157,66,01,610

2. Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year
(as per Schedule 6) 135,59,52,468 374,88,18,375
Less : Deposits with Scheduled Banks for more than 3 months period 0 303,64,06,507
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year as above 135,59,52,468 71,24,11,868

3. Borrowings from and repayments to Banks and Financial Institutions being for the purpose of the business of housing
finance, the interest expenses on the same are considered as operating activities.

4. Figures in bracket represent outflow of cash.

Schedules 1 to 15 annexed hereto form part of Accounts.
As per our report of even date attached

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

CA. M. P. Antia Keki M. Mistry Directors
Partner Chairman S. M. Palia

Rohit C. Mehta
Prafull Anubhai
Renu S. Karnad
K. G. Krishnamurthy

Mumbai Sudhin Choksey Marcus Lobo
April 16, 2010 Managing Director Company Secretary
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SCHEDULES : ANNEXED  TO  AND  FORMING  PART  OF  THE  ACCOUNTS
Schedule  1 : SHARE  CAPITAL         (Rupees)

As At As At
March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

AUTHORISED
5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 50,00,00,000 50,00,00,000

(Previous Year 5,00,00,000)
50,00,00,000 50,00,00,000

ISSUED  AND  SUBSCRIBED         (Note 1)
3,47,25,150 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 34,72,51,500 34,65,19,600

(Previous Year 3,46,51,960 Shares)
PAID - UP
3,47,25,150 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 34,72,51,500 34,65,19,600

(Previous Year 3,46,51,960 Shares)
(Of  the  above 2,13,07,785 Shares  are  held
by  Housing Development Finance Corporation
Limited, the Holding Company.
Previous Year 2,13,07,785) 34,72,51,500 34,65,19,600

Schedule 2 : RESERVES AND SURPLUS         (Rupees)
As At As At

March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

SPECIAL RESERVE                       (Note 2)
Opening Balance 79,71,00,000 67,71,00,000
Add : Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 17,50,00,000 12,00,00,000

97,21,00,000 79,71,00,000
GENERAL  RESERVE
Opening Balance 17,32,36,808 12,22,36,808
Add : Transfer from Profit & Loss Account 6,90,00,000 5,10,00,000

24,22,36,808 17,32,36,808

SECURITIES PREMIUM
Opening Balance 61,54,23,438 61,75,91,233
Add  : Received during the year 1,09,38,194 2,42,877
Less : Utilised during the year (Net of tax Rs. 2,55,349
(Previous Year Rs. 12,41,308)) 4,95,898 24,10,672

62,58,65,734 61,54,23,438

BALANCE IN PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 45,88,06,741 27,64,22,725
229,90,09,283 186,21,82,971
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Schedule 3 : LOAN FUNDS          (Rupees)
As At As At

March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009
LOANS
SECURED        (Note 3)
National Housing Bank 968,82,67,031 1072,47,17,000
Banks 900,00,00,000 757,50,00,000
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures 135,00,00,000 125,00,00,000

2003,82,67,031 1954,97,17,000
UNSECURED    (Note 4)

Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Debentures 40,00,00,000 40,00,00,000

Deposits         (Note 9)
Public Deposits 278,95,77,764 249,84,38,269
Interest Accrued and Due 33,78,127 33,77,971

279,29,55,891 250,18,16,240
319,29,55,891 290,18,16,240

2323,12,22,922 2245,15,33,240

Schedule 4 : LOANS (Rupees)

As At As At
March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

LOANS            (Notes  5  to  7)
Home  Loans

Individuals 2228,49,30,425 1882,71,97,638
Others 29,57,30,492 32,02,89,102

2258,06,60,917 1914,74,86,740
Other  Loans

Individuals 149,12,83,050 129,89,06,345
Others 46,50,43,514 46,79,19,808

195,63,26,564 176,68,26,153
2453,69,87,481 2091,43,12,893
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Schedule 5 : INVESTMENTS          (Rupees)
As At As At

March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009
Long Term Investments (At Cost)
Government Securities 32,24,74,738 11,57,06,673
Debentures & Bonds 2,46,03,075 2,46,03,075
Equity Shares 15,000 15,000

34,70,92,813 14,03,24,748
Less : Provision for Loss to arise on redemption of Investments 1,98,97,302 1,25,45,485

32,71,95,511 12,77,79,263

Book Value Market Value
Aggregate of Quoted Investments 34,70,77,813 33,75,84,663
Previous  Year  (14,03,09,748)  (13,29,40,448)
Aggregate of Unquoted Investments 15,000
Previous  Year (15,000)

34,70,92,813
Previous Year  (14,03,24,748)

Notes :
(1)  The above Investments of Rs. 34,70,77,813/- (Previous Year Rs. 14,03,09,748/-) are made in Statutory Liquid Assets

in accordance  with the norms  prescribed  by  the  National Housing Bank.
(2)  In case of quoted investments, where quotes are not available, book value has been considered as market value.

(Rupees)
Government Securities As At As At

March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009
08.07 %  Government of India Loan 2017 5,68,01,000 5,68,01,000
12.40 %  Government of India Loan 2013 3,23,64,500 3,23,64,500
11.50 %  Government of India Loan 2011 (Purchased during the year) 14,82,84,000 0
11.50 %  Government of India Loan 2010 1,22,60,000 1,22,60,000
12.00 %  Andhra Pradesh State Development Loan 2010 (Purchased during the year) 49,17,960 0
12.00 %  Gujarat State Development Loan 2011 1,15,06,890 1,15,06,890
12.00 %  Gujarat State Development Loan 2010 17,56,483 17,56,483
11.50 %  Gujarat State Development Loan 2010 (Purchased during the year) 2,12,50,000 0
11.50 %  Karnataka State Development Loan 2010 (Purchased during the year) 2,12,50,000 0
10.35 %  Maharashtra State Development Loan 2011 (Purchased during the year) 84,92,500 0
12.00 %  Maharashtra State Development Loan 2010 (Purchased during the year) 35,91,405 0
11.50 %  Tamilnadu State Development Loan 2009 (Matured during the year) 0 10,17,800

32,24,74,738 11,57,06,673

Bonds (Redeemable) No. of Face Value As At As At
Bonds Per Bond(Rs.) March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

11.50 %  National Housing Bank 205 1,00,000 2,46,03,075 2,46,03,075
2,46,03,075 2,46,03,075

Equity Shares No. of Face Value As At As At
Shares Per Share(Rs.) March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

Hunnar Shaala Foundation for Building
Technology and Innovations 1500 10 15,000 15,000

15,000 15,000
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Schedule 7 : CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS (Rupees)

As At As At
March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

CURRENT  LIABILITIES
Interest Accrued but not Due 13,17,61,447 18,39,18,122
Sundry Creditors                                  (Note 20) 85,78,953 72,28,672
Instalments Received in Advance 1,75,74,594 1,17,09,672
Unpaid Dividend                                   (Note 9) 40,56,741 33,85,184
Book Overdraft 0 6,27,681
Other Liabilities 11,38,27,858 7,06,94,993
PROVISIONS
Proposed Dividend 22,57,13,475 16,63,29,408
Provision for Retirement Benefits 1,87,38,404 1,80,15,410
Provision for Contingencies 27,91,76,194 22,31,86,080

79,94,27,666 68,50,95,222

Schedule 6 : CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES (Rupees)

As At As At
March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

CURRENT ASSETS
Income Accrued on Investments 72,34,338 33,61,249
Interest Accrued on Deposits 68,493 2,67,12,424
Cash and Bank Balances :

Cash on Hand 2,62,860 2,62,646
Cheques on Hand 2,84,97,429 1,28,36,344

Balance with Scheduled Banks :
Current Accounts 15,71,92,179 12,59,72,878
Deposit Accounts 117,00,00,000 360,97,46,507

135,59,52,468 374,88,18,375

LOANS  AND  ADVANCES                      (Note 8)
Instalments due from Borrowers (Secured) 9,25,78,853 14,09,19,050
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind
or for value to be received 16,83,30,258 24,09,24,258

26,09,09,111 38,18,43,308
162,41,64,410 416,07,35,356
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Schedule 8 : FIXED ASSETS (Rupees)

G  R  O  S  S      B  L  O  C  K D E P R E C I A T I O N N E T   B L O C K
(A  T      C  O  S  T)

Particulars As At Additions Deductions As At As At Additions Deductions As At As  At As At
1-Apr-09 31-Mar-10 1-Apr-09 31-Mar-10 31-Mar-10 31-Mar-09

Tangible Assets

Freehold Land 96,63,515 0 0 96,63,515 0 0 0 0 96,63,515 96,63,515

Office Building 4,85,13,910 0 0 4,85,13,910 92,32,293 7,90,777 0 1,00,23,070 3,84,90,840 3,92,81,617

Residential Flat 45,67,287 0 19,93,432 25,73,855 9,24,463 50,288 3,88,709 5,86,042 19,87,813 36,42,824

Furniture & Fixture 4,90,20,439 53,56,423 15,95,372 5,27,81,490 3,35,34,265 47,16,304 13,88,353 3,68,62,216 1,59,19,274 1,54,86,174

Office Equipment 1,96,05,738 24,11,302 30,79,238 1,89,37,802 1,02,38,186 16,71,236 24,96,078 94,13,344 95,24,458 93,67,552

Electrical Installation 76,59,408 5,60,600 0 82,20,008 58,77,216 3,25,745 0 62,02,961 20,17,047 17,82,192

Computers 4,44,61,576 60,93,646 1,11,13,500 3,94,41,722 3,52,36,828 55,01,570 1,04,76,118 3,02,62,280 91,79,442 92,24,748

Vehicles 6,75,547 0 0 6,75,547 3,09,746 1,41,761 0 4,51,507 2,24,040 3,65,801

Intangible Assets

Computer Software 1,35,33,473 67,77,217 0 2,03,10,690 1,10,29,870 11,52,006 0 1,21,81,876 81,28,814 25,03,603
As At 31-Mar-10 19,77,00,893 2,11,99,188 1,77,81,542 20,11,18,539 10,63,82,867 1,43,49,687 1,47,49,258 10,59,83,296 9,51,35,243 9,13,18,026

As At 31-Mar-09 18,93,40,775 1,60,73,114 77,12,996 19,77,00,893 10,26,52,508 96,37,571 59,07,212 10,63,82,867 9,13,18,026
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Schedule 9 : OPERATING   INCOME   (Note 10) (Rupees)

Current Year Previous Year
Interest on Loans 275,82,30,283 261,80,90,610
(Tax Deducted at Source Rs. 1,60,73,374/-)
(Previous year Rs. 1,95,91,306/-)

Other Operating Income 20,20,06,599 24,88,29,667
(Tax Deducted at Source Rs. 2,69,66,214/-)
(Previous year Rs. 3,78,02,890/-) 296,02,36,882 286,69,20,277

Schedule 10 : INTEREST AND OTHER CHARGES        (Rupees)

Current Year Previous Year

INTEREST
Loans 132,36,79,897 118,47,33,950
Non-Convertible Debentures 7,43,61,098 23,21,30,061
Commercial Papers 12,13,00,850 36,80,43,185
Deposits 25,89,06,361 20,35,02,973
OTHER  CHARGES
Brokerage on Deposits 1,00,55,280 1,12,16,631
Bank Charges 78,95,193 88,04,450
Other Financial Charges 58,04,271 33,78,509

180,20,02,950 201,18,09,759

Schedule 11 : STAFF EXPENSES        (Rupees)

Current Year Previous Year
Salaries and Bonus   (Note 11) 10,70,55,433 9,24,43,858
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 1,06,57,730 1,10,29,423
Staff Welfare  Expenses 38,39,344 33,27,151
Staff  Training and Recruitment  Expenses 25,63,467 15,86,861

12,41,15,974 10,83,87,293
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Schedule 12 : ESTABLISHMENT EXPENSES            (Rupees)
Current Year Previous Year

Rent 1,68,97,758 1,25,03,060
Rates & Taxes 14,41,847 8,39,652
Electricity  Charges 40,64,660 33,61,637
Repairs and Maintenance 54,15,917 32,21,363
Office  Maintenance 77,66,077 52,98,941
Insurance  Charges 11,16,172 9,53,857

3,67,02,431 2,61,78,510

Schedule  13  : OTHER   EXPENSES       (Rupees)
Current Year Previous Year

Travelling and Conveyance 1,20,24,533 1,18,63,468
Printing and Stationery 78,14,972 74,67,462
Postage, Telephone and Fax 1,50,07,035 1,45,27,529
Advertising & Business Promotion 1,95,87,503 1,14,32,616
Legal and Professional Charges 80,97,743 70,13,685
Directors’ Fees 7,70,000 7,20,000
Auditors’ Remuneration   (Note 19) 15,85,786 9,75,070
Miscellaneous Expenses   (Note 21) 1,37,97,684 95,11,886

7,86,85,256 6,35,11,716
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GRUH FINANCE LIMITED
SCHEDULE 14 : NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

1. During the year, the Company has issued 69,292 and 3,898 (Previous Year Nil and 4,261) shares on exercise of Options
granted to its employees and directors under ESOS Scheme – 2007 and 2005 respectively.

2. As per Section 29C(i) of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is required to transfer at least 20% of its net
profits every year to a reserve before any dividend is declared. For this purpose any Special Reserve created by the
Company under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is considered to be an eligible transfer. The Company has
transferred an amount of Rs. 17.50 Crores (Previous Year Rs. 12 Crores) to Special Reserve in terms of Section 36(1)(viii)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Company doesn’t anticipate any withdrawal from Special Reserve in foreseeable future.

3. Secured Loans :
(a) Refinance from National Housing Bank (NHB) and Term Loans from Banks are secured against negative lien on all

the assets of the  Company excluding
i. The specific immovable property mortgaged in favour of Debenture Trustees against the Secured Redeemable

Non-Convertible Debentures; and
ii. The Statutory Liquid Assets having floating charge in favour of the Public Deposit Trustees against the Public

Deposits.
(b) Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures amounting to Rs. 135 Crores are secured by mortgage of specific immovable

property created in favour of Debenture Trustees and by a negative lien on the assets of the Company excluding
the Statutory Liquid Assets having floating charge in favour of the Public Deposit Trustees against the Public
Deposits. These NCD’s are redeemable at par in one or more instalments, on various dates, with the earliest
redemption date being November 19, 2014 and the last being December 3, 2014.

4. Unsecured Loans :
(a) Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Debentures of Rs. 40 Crores are subordinated debt to present and

future senior indebtedness of the Company and qualify as Tier II Capital under National Housing Bank’s (NHB’s)
guidelines for assessing capital adequacy. These NCD’s are redeemable at par on February 13, 2013.

(b) The maximum amount of Commercial Paper outstanding at any time during the year was Rs. 500 Crores (Previous
Year Rs. 500 Crores). As at March 31, 2010 there were no Commercial Paper outstanding.

(c) Public Deposits include Rs. 107,22,08,642/- (Previous Year Rs. 77,75,04,557/-) due within one year. The Public
Deposits are secured by floating charge on the Statutory Liquid Assets.

5. Loans granted by the Company are secured or partly secured by :
(a) Equitable mortgage of property and / or
(b) Pledge of Shares, Units, Other Securities, Assignments of Life Insurance Policies  and / or
(c) Hypothecation of assets and / or
(d) Bank Guarantees, Company Guarantees or Personal Guarantees and / or
(e) Undertaking to create a security.

6. (a) The Company has complied with the norms prescribed under Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2001
for recognising Non-Performing Assets (NPA) in preparation of Accounts. As per the norms, NPA’s are recognised
on the basis of 90 days overdue. NPA’s are to be treated as Bad & Doubtful, if they remain outstanding for more
than 15 months. The Company has made adequate provisions on Non-Performing Assets and Standard Assets in
respect of Housing and Non Housing Loans as prescribed under Housing Finance Companies (NHB)
Directions, 2001.
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Schedule 14 : NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
(b) Classification of loans and provision made for Non-Performing Loan Assets is given below :

Particulars Standard Sub – Standard Bad & Doubtful Total
As on March 31, 2010
Home Loans

Individual 2202,67,51,570 14,99,03,468 10,82,75,387 2228,49,30,425
Others 29,57,30,492 0 0 29,57,30,492

Other Loans
Individual 147,80,58,118 1,22,27,052 9,97,880 149,12,83,050
Others 46,50,43,514 0 0 46,50,43,514

Total 2426,55,83,694 16,21,30,520 10,92,73,267 2453,69,87,481
Percentage (%) 98.89 0.66 0.45 100
Provision
As on March 31, 2009 2,63,65,175 10,85,34,616 8,82,86,289 22,31,86,080
Provided during the year (1,85,92,768) 5,35,95,904 2,09,86,978 5,59,90,114
Total as on March 31, 2010 77,72,407 16,21,30,520 10,92,73,267 27,91,76,194
Net NPA 0
Net NPA as a % of Loan Assets 0

Particulars Standard Sub – Standard Bad & Doubtful Total
As on March 31, 2009
Home Loans

Individual 1863,48,81,715 10,55,80,103 8,67,35,820 1882,71,97,638
Others 32,02,89,102 0 0 32,02,89,102

Other Loans
Individual 129,44,01,363 29,54,513 15,50,469 129,89,06,345
Others 46,79,19,808 0 0 46,79,19,808

Total 2071,74,91,988 10,85,34,616 8,82,86,289 2091,43,12,893
Percentage (%) 99.06 0.52 0.42 100
Provision
As on March 31, 2008 78,74,661 10,72,47,727 9,02,23,748 20,53,46,136
Provided during the year  1,84,90,514 12,86,889 (19,37,459) 1,78,39,944
Total as on March 31, 2009 2,63,65,175 10,85,34,616 8,82,86,289 22,31,86,080
Net NPA 0
Net NPA as a % of Loan Assets 0

7. Loans include Rs. 4,91,92,175/- (Previous Year Rs. 5,82,36,952/-) in respect of properties held for disposal under
Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002.

(Rupees)
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8. (a) The instalments due from borrowers includes Rs. 7,25,02,076/- (Previous Year Rs. 8,14,87,042/-) which are
accrued but not due.

(b) Advances recoverable in cash or kind include Advance Tax of Rs. 108,81,92,341/- (Previous Year Rs. 80,85,20,047)
after adjusting Rs. 98,56,10,063/- (Previous Year Rs. 68,89,60,063/-) towards Provision for Taxation.

9. As required under Section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 the Company has transferred Rs. 4,92,002/- (Previous
Year Rs. 4,32,900/-) to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) during the year.

10. (a) Interest on loans includes income from home loans Rs. 247,83,46,013/- (Previous Year Rs. 229,78,70,905/-) and
Income from other loans Rs. 27,98,84,270/- (Previous Year Rs. 32,02,19,705/-).

(b) Other Operating Income includes Interest on Bank Deposit Rs. 19,49,05,130/- (Previous Year
Rs. 16,92,84,257/-), Dividend from Mutual Funds Rs. 1,59,29,648/- (Previous Year Rs. 3,44,63,250/-), Income
from Long Term Investments amounting to Rs. 2,03,57,010/- (Previous Year Rs. 1,55,32,166/-) and Income on
Sold Loans Rs. (3,48,04,675/-) (Previous Year Rs. 2,72,17,313/-).

11. In compliance with the Accounting Standard on ‘Employee Benefits’ (AS 15) (Revised 2005) notified by Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 the following disclosures have been made :
a) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Profit and Loss Account which are included under
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds :
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Rupees Rupees
Provident Fund 25,64,985 19,74,047
Superannuation Fund 27,97,262 14,58,939

The Rules of the Company’s Provident Fund administered by a Trust require that if the Board of the Trustees are
unable to pay interest at the rate declared for Employees’ Provident Fund by the Government under para 60 of
the Employees’ Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 for the reason that the return on investment is less or for any
other reason, then the deficiency shall be made good by the Company. Having regard to the assets of the fund
and the return on the investments, the Company does not expect any deficiency in the foreseeable future.

b) State Plans
The Company has recognised Rs. 17,99,242/- (Previous Year Rs. 16,41,193/-) in the Profit and Loss Account for
Contribution to State Plan namely Employee’s Pension Scheme.

c) Defined Benefit Plans
i) Leave Encashment/Compensated Absences :
Salaries and Bonus includes Rs. 31,82,164/- (Previous Year Rs. 41,12,761/-) towards provision made as per
actuarial valuation in respect of accumulated leave salary encashable on retirement.
ii)  Contribution to Gratuity Fund :
The details of the Company’s post-retirement benefit plans for its employees including the Managing Director are
given below which is certified by the actuary and relied upon by the auditors :

Schedule 14 : NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
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Schedule 14 : NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Rupees Rupees
Change in the Benefit Obligations :  
Liability at the beginning of the year 1,55,85,003 93,27,753
Current Service Cost 23,32,875 18,54,715
Interest Cost 12,68,619 7,08,909
Benefits Paid (2,798)     (2,44,431)
Actuarial loss 11,48,819 39,38,057
Liability at the end of the year 2,03,32,518 1,55,85,003
Fair Value of Plan Assets :  
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 96,85,494 66,37,540
Expected Return on Plan Assets 11,96,507 7,34,537
Contributions 58,99,509 26,90,213
Benefits Paid (2,798) (2,44,431)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan Assets 1,24,849 (1,32,365)
Fair Value on Plan Assets at the end of the year 1,69,03,561 96,85,494
Total Actuarial loss  to be recognized 10,23,970  (40,70,422)
Actual Return on Plan Assets :  
Expected Return on Plan Assets 11,96,507 7,34,537
Actuarial loss on Plan Assets 1,24,849 (1,32,365)
Actuarial Return on Plan Assets 13,21,356 6,02,172
Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet :  
Liability at the end of the year 2,03,32,518 1,55,85,003
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 1,69,03,561 96,85,494
Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet under
“Provision for Retirement Benefit” 34,28,957 58,99,509
Expense Recognized in the Profit and Loss Account :  
Current Service Cost 23,32,875 18,54,715
Interest Cost 12,68,619 7,08,909
Expected Return on Plan Assets (11,96,507) (7,34,537)
Net Actuarial loss to be recognized 10,23,970 40,70,422
Expense recognized in the Profit and Loss Account under “Staff Expenses” 34,28,957 58,99,509
Reconciliation of the Liability Recognized in the Balance Sheet :  
Opening Net Liability 58,99,509 26,90,213
Expense Recognized 34,28,957 58,99,509
Contribution by the Company (58,99,509) (26,90,213)
Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet under
“Provision for Retirement Benefits” 34,28,957 58,99,509
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      INVESTMENT PATTERN :
Particulars % Invested % Invested

Current Year Previous Year
Central Government Securities  27.27 23.80
State Government Securities / Securities
guaranteed by State / Central Government  34.57  21.32
Public Sector / Financial Institutional Bonds  31.35 47.83
Special Deposit Scheme   0.70   1.22
Others (including bank balances)   6.11  5.83
Total             100.00             100.00

Based on the above allocation and the prevailing yields on these assets, the long term estimate of the expected rate of
return on fund assets has been arrived at.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet Date (expressed as weighted averages) :
Particulars 31.3.2010 31.3.2009 31.3.2008
Discount Rate (%) 8.14 7.60 8.25
Expected Return on Plan Assets (%) 9.00 9.00 9.00
Proportion of employees opting for early retirement - - -
Annual increase in Salary Cost (%) 6.00 6.00 6.00
Future changes in maximum state health care benefits - - -
The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
Amount for the current and previous periods are as follows :
Particulars 31.3.2010 31.3.2009 31.3.2008
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 2,03,32,518 1,55,85,003 93,27,753
Fair Value of Plan Assets 1,69,03,561 96,85,494 66,37,540
Surplus/(Deficit) in the Plan (34,28,957) (58,99,509) (26,90,213)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (loss)/gain 11,16,715 (10,02,975) -
Experience adjustments on plan assets (loss)/gain - - -

12. The Company has disputed demands of Rs. 12,72,09,365/- (Previous Year Rs. 11,07,56,815/-) in respect of Income Tax,
Fringe Benefit Tax and Interest Tax in the appellate proceedings. The Company expects to succeed in these proceedings
and hence no additional provision is considered necessary.

13. In the opinion of the Company, there is only one identified reportable segment i.e. Housing Finance Business Segment for
the purpose of Accounting Standard on ‘Segment Reporting’ (AS 17) notified by Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006.

Schedule 14 : NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
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14. Consequent to the Accounting Standard on ‘Related Party Disclosure’ (AS 18) notified by Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006 following persons will be considered as related persons for the period ended as on March 31, 2010 :

Sr. No. Name of the Related Party Nature of Relationship
(i) Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited (HDFC) Holding Company
(ii) HDFC Developers Limited Fellow Subsidiary
(iii) HDFC Investments Limited Fellow Subsidiary
(iv) HDFC Holdings Limited Fellow Subsidiary
(v) HDFC Asset Management Co. Limited Fellow Subsidiary
(vi) HDFC Trustee Co. Limited Fellow Subsidiary
(vii) HDFC Standard Life Insurance Co. Limited Fellow Subsidiary
(viii) HDFC Realty Limited Fellow Subsidiary
(ix) HDFC ERGO General Insurance Co. Limited Fellow Subsidiary
(x) HDFC Sales Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary
(xi) HDFC Ventures Trustee Company Limited Fellow Subsidiary
(xii) HDFC Property Ventures Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary
(xiii) HDFC Ventures Capital Limited Fellow Subsidiary
(xiv) HDFC Asset Management Company (Singapore) PTE Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary
(xv) GRIHA Investments Fellow Subsidiary
(xvi) Mr. Sudhin Choksey, Managing Director Key Management Personnel

(Related party relationships are as identified by the Company and relied upon by the auditors.)

The nature and volume of transactions of the Company during the year with the above-related parties were as follows :
2009-2010 (Rupees)
Particulars Holding Company Fellow Subsidiary Key Management

Companies Personnel
Commission Received Nil 4,25,121 Nil
Dividend Paid 10,22,77,368 Nil Nil
Remuneration Nil Nil 86,48,000
Purchase(Buy Back) of  Home Loans 22,24,29,942 Nil Nil
Insurance Premium Paid Nil 4,08,110 Nil
Exercise of Stock Options Nil Nil 37,04,625
Balance as on March 31, 2010
Account Payable Nil Nil Nil
Account Receivable Nil Nil Nil

Schedule 14 : NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
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2008-2009                                                                      (Rupees)
Particulars Holding Company Fellow Subsidiary Key Management

Companies Personnel
Commission Received Nil 12,70,588 Nil
Dividend Paid 8,52,31,140 Nil Nil
Remuneration Nil Nil 74,42,000
Purchase(Buy Back) of  Home Loans 30,84,419 Nil Nil
Repayment of Loan Nil Nil 2,48,589
Interest Income Nil Nil 3,315
Balance as on March 31, 2009
Account Payable Nil Nil Nil
Account Receivable Nil Nil Nil

15. In accordance with the Accounting Standard on ‘Earning Per Share’ (AS 20) notified by the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006, the EPS are as follows :
a) The Earning Per Share (EPS) is calculated as follows :

(Rupees)
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
(i)  Net profit attributable to Equity Share Holders 68,95,85,678 50,27,59,530
(ii)  Weighted Average number of shares for computation

of Basic Earning Per Share 3,46,71,607 3,46,49,660
(iii) Nominal Value of Equity Shares 10/- 10/-
(iv) EPS - Basic 19.889 14.510
(v) EPS - Diluted 19.847 14.510

b) The Basic Earning Per Share have been computed by dividing the Profit After Tax by the weighted average number
of equity shares for the respective periods. The weighted average number of shares have been derived as follows :
i. For the year 2009-10 :

Particulars No. of Shares Days
(i)  Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 3,46,51,960 135
(ii)  Allotment of shares under ESOS-2005 & 2007 73,190 230
(iii) Weighted Average number of shares for computation

of Basic Earning Per Share 3,46,71,607
ii. For the year 2008-09 :

Particulars No. of Shares Days
(i) Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 3,46,47,699 197
(ii) Allotment of shares under ESOS-2005 4,261 168
(iii) Weighted Average number of shares for computation

of Basic Earning Per Share 3,46,49,660

Schedule 14 : NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
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c) The Diluted Earning Per Share have been computed by dividing the Profit After Tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares, after giving dilute effect of outstanding Stock Options for the respective periods. The
relevant details are as follows :

Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
(i) Weighted Average number of shares for computation

of Basic Earning Per Share 3,46,71,607 3,46,49,660
(ii) Dilute effect of outstanding Stock Options 74,110 Nil
(iii) Weighted Average number of shares for computation

of Diluted Earning Per Share 3,47,45,717 3,46,49,660

16. In accordance with Accounting Standard on ‘Accounting for Taxes on Income’ (AS 22) notified by Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 the Company is accounting for deferred tax. The Company has taken credit of
Rs. 4,22,43,231/- (Previous Year Rs. 97,26,845/-) in the Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2010
towards deferred tax asset (net) for the year, arising on account of timing differences.
The Break up of deferred tax asset / liability as on  March 31, is as follows :

      (Rupees)
Description 2010 2009
(A) Deferred Tax Liability

Depreciation 87,05,974 96,72,820
Sale of Home Loans 0 1,51,13,173
Other Provisions 39,82,320 77,75,973
Total (A) 1,26,88,294 3,25,61,966

(B) Deferred Tax Asset
Provision for NPA 9,48,91,988 7,58,60,949
Other Provisions 1,12,25,032 78,86,511
Total (B) 10,61,17,020 8,37,47,460
Net (Asset) / Liability (9,34,28,726) (5,11,85,495)

17. Employee Share Based Payment
a) As on March 31, 2010 the Company has the following Employee Stock Option Scheme, the features of the same

are as follows :
  Scheme ESOS - 2007

Date of Grant November 20, 2007
Number of options granted 7,94,979
Exercise Price per option Rs. 164.65
Date of vesting The vesting will be as under :

30% on November 20, 2008
35% on November 20, 2009
35% on November 20, 2010

Exercise Period Within 3 years from the date of respective vesting.
Method of settlement Through allotment of one Equity Share for each option granted.

Schedule 14 : NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)



57

b) Intrinsic Value Method has been used to account for the employee share based payment plans. The intrinsic value of each
stock option granted under the ESOS – 2007 plan is Rs. Nil since the market price of the underlying share at the grant
date was same as the exercise price and consequently the accounting value of the option (compensation cost) is Rs. Nil.

c) Further details of the stock option plans is as follows :
Particulars ESOS – 2005 ESOS – 2007
Options Outstanding at start of year 9,808 2,85,000
Options not vested at the start of year Nil 4,55,000
Options Lapsed during the year 5,910 57,800
Options Exercised during the year 3,898 69,292
Options vested but not exercised at end of year Nil 4,05,638
Options not vested at end of year Nil 2,07,270
Weighted Average Exercise Price per Option Rs. 67 Rs. 164.65

d) The Black-Scholes-Mertons Option Pricing Model have been used to derive the estimated value of stock option granted
if the fair value method to account for the employee share based payment plans were to be used. The estimated value
of each stock options and the parameters used for deriving the estimated value of Stock Option granted under Black-
Scholes-Mertons Option Pricing Model is as follows:

Particulars ESOS – 2007 ESOS – 2007 ESOS – 2007
Vesting on Vesting on Vesting on

November 20, 2008  November 20, 2009 November 20, 2010
Estimated Value of Stock Options (Rs.) 17.00 24.00 26.00
Share Price at Grant Date (Rs.) 164.65 164.65 164.65
Exercise Price (Rs.) 164.65 164.65 164.65
Expected Volatility (%) 25.00 25.00 25.00
Dividend Yield Rate (%) 3.75 4.75 6.25
Expected Life of Options (in days) 324 690 1055
Risk Free Rate of Interest (%) 7.50 7.61  7.66

e) Had the compensation cost for the stock options granted under ESOS – 2007 been determined on fair value approach,
the Company’s net profit and earning per share would have been as pro forma amounts indicated below :

       (Rupees)
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
Net Profit After Tax as reported 68,95,85,678 50,27,59,530
Less : Amortisation of Compensation Cost (pro forma) 34,11,516 74,53,576
Net profit considered for computing EPS (pro forma) 68,61,74,162 49,53,05,954
Earning Per Share  - (Basic)

- as reported 19.889 14.510
- pro forma 19.791 14.295

Earning Per Share  - (Diluted)
- as reported 19.847 14.510
- pro forma 19.748 14.295

Schedule 14 : NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
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Schedule 14 : NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
18.  Managerial Remuneration  :

        (Rupees)
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
Salary and Allowances 24,00,000 21,00,000
Contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund 6,48,000 5,67,000
Leave Encashment 2,00,000 1,75,000
Perquisites 24,00,000 21,00,000
Ex-Gratia 30,00,000 25,00,000

86,48,000 74,42,000
      The above remuneration is excluding Contribution to the Gratuity Fund of Rs. 6,79,256/- (Previous Year Rs. 16,95,542/-)
19. During the year Auditors have been paid remuneration of Rs. 15,85,786/- (Previous Year Rs. 9,75,070/-). Brief details of

remuneration paid to them are as follows :
        (Rupees)

Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
Audit Fees 8,00,000 4,00,000
Tax Audit Fees 1,60,000 1,20,000
Other Certification Work 4,16,001 4,14,500
Reimbursement of Expenses 2,09,785 40,570

15,85,786 9,75,070

20. Sundry Creditors include Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. Nil) payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. No interest has been paid / payable by the Company during the year to the
“Supplier” covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

21. Miscellaneous Expenses includes Expenses for Recovery Rs. 78,25,257/- (Previous Year Rs. 70,08,536/-), Expenses on
Statutory Advertisement of Rs. 12,04,338/- (Previous Year Rs. 9,43,611/-) and Loss on Sale of Acquired Properties
Rs. 16,46,932/- (Previous Year Rs. 12,67,097/-).

22. Amount remitted during the year in foreign currency on account of dividend :
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09

i) Number of Non-resident Shareholders 1 1
ii) Number of shares held by them 1,25,000 1,25,000
iii) Year to which dividend relates 2008-09 2007-08
iv) Amount remitted (Rs.) 6,00,000 5,00,000

23. There are no indications which reflect that any of the assets of the Company had got impaired from its potential use and
therefore no impairment loss was required to be accounted in the current year as per Accounting Standard on ‘Impairment
of Assets’ (AS 28) notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

24. Figures for the Previous Year have been re-grouped or recast wherever necessary.
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Schedule 15 :  ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. ACCOUNTING CONVENTION
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with historical cost convention, applicable Accounting
Standards notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 and guidelines issued by the National Housing Bank.
The preparation of Financial Statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions in the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as of the date of the financial statements and the
reported income and expenses during the reporting period. Management believes that the estimates used in preparation
of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates.

2. SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTING
The Company adopts the accrual concept in the preparation of the accounts. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and
Loss Account of the Company are prepared in accordance with the provisions contained in section 211 of the Companies
Act, 1956, read with Schedule VI thereto.

3. INFLATION
Assets and Liabilities are recorded at historical cost to the Company. These costs are not adjusted to reflect the
changing value in the purchasing power of money.

4. INTEREST ON HOUSING LOANS
Repayments of housing loans is by way of Equated Monthly Instalments (EMIs) / Equated Half-yearly Instalments
(EHYIs) comprising principal and interest. Interest on loans is computed either on an annual rest or on a monthly rest
basis. EMIs / EHYIs commence once the entire loan is disbursed. Pending commencement of EMIs / EHYIs, Pre-EMI
interest is payable every month.

5. SURPLUS ON SALE/ TRANSFER/ ASSIGNMENT OF LOANS
The surplus arising as the difference between the EMIs recoverable on the individual home loans sold/ transferred/
assigned and amounts payable to the purchaser of such home loans over the tenure of the loan is being recognised by
way of surplus since risks and rewards of ownership of loan have been assigned on sale / transfer / assignment of loans.
However, depending on the terms of such individual home loans, the Company sets aside part of the surplus to
Contingencies for Loans Sold. During each subsequent year the Contingencies on Sold Loans is adjusted to recognise
the balance surplus depending on the remaining tenure and outstanding loan amount after considering prepayments,
if any received during the year.

6. INCOME FROM INVESTMENT
Income from investment is accounted on an accrual basis. The gain/loss on account of investments in debentures/
bonds and government securities held as long-term investments and acquired at a discount/premium, is recognised
over the life of the security on a pro-rata basis.

7. INVESTMENTS
Investments are stated at cost inclusive of related expenses and are classified into Current or Long Term categories.
Provision for diminution in value of investments is made if management perceives that there is significant permanent
diminution in value of investments or in accordance with the norms prescribed by the National Housing Bank and
Accounting Standards on ‘Accounting for Investments’ (AS 13) notified by Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006.

8. BROKERAGE ON DEPOSIT
Brokerage, other than incentives, paid on deposits is amortised over the period of the deposit. Incentives, which is
payable to agents who achieve certain collection targets, is charged to the Profit and Loss Account.
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9. STOCK OF ACQUIRED AND/OR DEVELOPED PROPERTIES
Stock of acquired and/or developed properties is valued at realisable value or outstanding dues, whichever is less. In
case of properties acquired and developed, the value includes appropriate share of development expenses.

10. TAX ON INCOME
The accounting treatment for the Income Tax in respect of the Company’s income is based on the Accounting
Standards on ‘Accounting for Taxes on Income’ (AS 22) notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006. The provision made for Income Tax in Accounts comprises of both, the current tax and deferred tax.
Deferred tax is recognised for all timing differences, being the differences between the taxable income and accounting
income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Such deferred tax
is quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. The carrying
amount of deferred tax asset/liability is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and consequential adjustments are
carried out.

11. FIXED ASSETS
Fixed Assets are capitalised at cost inclusive of legal and/or installation expenses.

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible Assets comprising of Computer Software are stated at cost of acquisition, including any cost attributable for
bringing the same in its working condition less accumulated amortization. Any expenses on such software for support
and maintenance payable annually are charged to revenue.

13. DEPRECIATION
FIXED ASSETS :
i) Depreciation is provided on all assets except office premises and residential premises on “Written Down Value

Method” under section 205(2)(a) at the rates and in the manner prescribed under schedule XIV of the Companies
Act, 1956.

ii) Depreciation on office premises and residential premises is provided on “Straight Line Method” under section
205(2)(b) at the rates and in the manner prescribed under schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS  :
Computer software is amortised over a period of four years on Straight Line Basis.

14. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES
The Company’s policy is to carry adequate amounts in the Provision for Contingencies account to cover the principal
amount outstanding in respect of all non-performing assets, standard assets as also all other contingencies. All loans
and other credit exposures where the installments are overdue for ninety days and more are classified as non-performing
assets in accordance with the prudential norms prescribed by the National Housing Bank. The provisioning policy of the
Company covers the minimum provisioning required as per the NHB guidelines.

15. EMPLOYEE  BENEFITS
The Company has Defined Contribution Plans for post employment benefits namely Provident Fund and Superannuation
Fund which are recognized by the Income Tax Authorities. These funds are administered through trustees and the
Company’s contributions thereto are charged to revenue every year. The Company’s Contribution to State Plans
namely Employee’s Pension Scheme is charged to revenue every year.

Schedule 15 :  ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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The Company has Defined Benefit Plans namely leave encashment / compensated absences, Gratuity and Retention
Bonus for all the employees, the liability for which is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the year end
based on the Projected Unit Credit method and incremental liability, if any, is provided for in the books. Gratuity
scheme is administered through trust recognised by the Income Tax Authorities.
Actuarial Gains and Losses comprise of experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and
are recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account as income or expense.

16. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Contingent liabilities, if any, are disclosed in the notes on accounts. Provision is made in the accounts in respect of
those contingencies which are likely to materialise into liabilities after the year end till the adoption of accounts by
Board of Directors and which have material effect on the position stated in the Balance Sheet.

17. CAPITAL ISSUE EXPENSES
Expenses in connection with issue of Shares and Debentures are being adjusted against share premium/security
premium as permitted by section 78 of the Companies Act, 1956.
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE (PART-IV)

I. Registration Details :
Registration No. : 8 8 0 9 State Code : 0 4
Balance Sheet Date: 3 1 0 3 2 0 1 0

II. Capital Raised During the year : (Rupees)
Public Issue : N I L Rights Issue : N I L
Bonus Issue : N I L Private Placement : 7 3 1 9 0 0

III.Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds : (Rupees)
Sources of Funds Application of Funds
Paid up Capital 3 4 7 2 5 1 5 0 0 Loans 2 4 5 3 6 9 8 7 4 8 1

Reserves and Surplus 2 2 9 9 0 0 9 2 8 3 Net Fixed Assets 9 5 1 3 5 2 4 3

Secured Loans 2 0 0 3 8 2 6 7 0 3 1 Investments 3 2 7 1 9 5 5 1 1

Unsecured Loans 3 1 9 2 9 5 5 8 9 1 Net Current Assets 8 2 4 7 3 6 7 4 4

Deferred Tax Asset 9 3 4 2 8 7 2 6

Total Liabilities : 2 5 8 7 7 4 8 3 7 0 5 Total Assets : 2 5 8 7 7 4 8 3 7 0 5
IV. Performance of the Company : (Rupees)

Gross Income : 3 0 9 0 5 9 4 4 5 0 Total Expenditure : 2 1 4 6 3 4 6 6 5 4
Profit Before Tax : 9 4 4 2 4 7 7 9 6 Profit After Tax : 6 8 9 5 8 5 6 7 8

V. Earning per Share (Rs.) : 1 9 . 8 8 9 Dividend Rate (%) : 6 5

VI. Generic Names of Three Principal Products or Services of Company (as per monetary terms) :
The Company is mainly engaged in the business of providing long term housing finance for residential purposes to individuals.
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